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Strategic report

Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen professional
services giving outstanding advice to clients on
establishing, protecting, enhancing and realising
the value of their assets and businesses
throughout the economic cycle.

For more on who we are and what we do:
www.begbies-traynorgroup.com
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REVENUE

£60.17mM (+15%)

(2018 £52.4m)

NET DEBT

£6.0m (-20%)

{2018: £7.5m)

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX'

£7.7m (+27%)

{2018: £5.6m)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£3.5mM (+54%)

(2018: £2.3m)

ADJUSTED BASIC EPS?

4.9p (+23%)

(2018. 4.0p)

BASIC £PS

2.2D (+69%)

(2018:1.3p)

PROPOSED TOTAL DIVIDEND

2.6D (+8%)

(2018 2.4p)

© Profit pefore tax of £3.5 millior (2018 £2.3 rillion) plas
amaort sation of Intangible assars atsing vn acquisitions
of £2 4 mullion (2018 £° 9 milhon) and transaction costs
of £1 2 million (2018 £1 4 milliont
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Strategic report

At a glance

Begbies Traynor Group pic

is a leading business recovery,
financial advisory and property
services consultancy.

Professional staff

Comprehensive include’
network 650 licensed insolvency AIM listed
of locations staff and partners practivonars since 2004

accountants

across the UK
chartered surveyors

Qur businesses

02 Beghies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2019
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Qur services

Corporate and personal insolvency Corporate finance

We handle the largest number of corporate appointments Buy and sell side support on private company transacnons,
in the UK, principally serving the mid-market and
smaller companies,

Financial advisory Valuations
Forensic accounting and investigations, debt advisory, Valuation of property, businesses, machinery and
pusiness and financial restructuring, due diligence and business assets,

transactional support.

Auction and asset sales Property consultancy, planning

Sale of property, machinery and other business assets an management

through physical and onhne auctions. Commercial property Building consultancy, commercial property management,
agency focussed on northern and eastern England; specialist insurance and vacant property risk management,

transport planning and design,

Annual report and accounts 2019 Begbies Traynor Group plc 03
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Chairman’s statement

“ i am pleased to report ancther year of strong
financial performance.”

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

Introduction

I am pleased to report another year of strong financial performance,
in line with upgraded expectations', in which we have grown the
business organically, completed four acquisitions and increased
the dividend whilst reducing net debt.

All areas of the group have performed well: business recovery,
reflecting the benefits of recent organic investment and an
increase in insolvency numbers nationally, advisory services,
reflecting the prior year acquisition of Springboeard Corporate
Finance; and property services, which we have continued to
develop through focussed investment and by acquisition.

The benefit of cur strategy to increase the scale and quality

of the group’s businesses through both investment in arganic
growth and targeted acquisitions s reflected in cur financal
performance, We have delivered consecutive years of earnings
growth since 2015, with compound growth in adjusted earnings
per share of 14% over the last four years, enabling us to raise the
dividend for the last two years.

The group now has an enhanced breadth of service lines with muitiple
sources of growth potential Whilst we retain a counter-cyclical focus,
which accounts for 65% of our income, our broad range of services
positions the group well to grow across the econemic cycle Cur
principal activitizs, which fund our investrment programme and
enable the payment of dividends, generate strong operating
margins and are highly cash generative.

Our insolvency practice continues to develop through targeted
recruitment, focussed business development and acquisitions
The practice will also benefit from any cyclical growth in insolvency
numbers nationally, reflecting its market-leading position.

Our advisory team has grown through acguisition and recruitment in
recent years and we continue to seek opportunities for further growth.

Our property services businass has delivered consecutive years of
growth since our imtial acquisition of Eddisons in December 2014,
Our strategy has been to strengthen and broaden both services
and geographical coverage, which has resulted in profit growth
n the division from £1.9 million at our ininial investment in
December 2014 to £3.8 million this year The business is now
focussed on three key areas: valuations; auctions and asset sales;
and property consultancy, planning and management. in line with
our strategy, we will continue to develop and invest in this business.

Results

Group revenue in the year increased by 15% to £60.1 millicn

(2018: £52 4 million), 9% of which was organic. Adjusted” profit before
tax increased by 27% to £7.1 million (2018. £5.6 million). Statutory
profit before tax increased to £3.5 million {2018 £2.3 million).

Adjusted® basic earnings per share increased by 23% to 4.9 pence
(2018: 4.0 pence). Basic earnings per shareincreased to 2 2 pence
{2018: 1.3 pence).

Net debt decreased to £6.0 million (2018: £7.5 million) with leverage
(calculated as net debt to EBITDA% improving to 0.7 times
(2018 11 times)

Dividend

The board is pleased to recommend (subject to shareholder
approval at the company's annual general meeting) an increased
dividend for the year to 2.6 pence (2018 2.4 pence), an increase of
8% This comprises the interim dividend already paid of 8.8 pence
(2018: 0.7 pence) and a proposed final dividend of 1.8 pence
(2018: 17 pence).
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This is the second consecutive year of dividend growth and reflects
our confidence In sustaining cur financial track record of earnings
growth. The board remains committed to a long-term progressive
dividend policy, which takes account of the market outlook,
earnings growth and investment plans.

The final dividend will be paid on 7 Novermber 2019 to shareholders
on the register on 11 October 2019, with an ex-dividend date of
10 October 2019,

Strategy

Our strategy is to’

* be arrusted adwisor to all of our clients, delivering innovative
and entrepreneurnal advice and solutions;

increase the scale and quality of our businesses through both
organic growth and acquisitions,

deliver sustainable profitable growth, enabling increased
shareholder value; and

maintain our strong financial position enabhng the investment
in and development of the group and 1ts people.

People

The success of the group is reliant on the quality of advice

and service delivered to our clients by our people. twould like to
thank all of our colleagues for their contribution over the course
of this year.

Outlook

We are better positioned than ever with multiple sources
of potential growth supported by a strong financal platform
We have a good pipeline of both organic and acquisition
opportunities across all of our service lines,

There is currently uncertainty in the UK economy as a result of
the Brexit process, but with a combination of cur counter-cyclical
activities together with our breadth of services, we are well placed
to continue our track record of growth in the new financial year
and beyond.

We have entered the new financial year with positive momentum
and we are confident of delivering current market expectations
As usual, we will provide an update on trading at the time of the
company’'s annual general meeting in September 2019

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman
8 july 2019
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Five year performance

60.1

501 497 324

REVENUE (£m) 45.4

£60.Tm

(2018 £52 4m) 156 W 18 19

ADJUSTED PROFIT 71
BEFORE TAX (p) 19 56
a5 *
7 /I p 3.6
(2618 5.6p) 15 16 37 18 19
49
4.0

ADJUSTED BASIC EPS (p)

4.9p

(2018 4.0p)

3.2 33

15 16 17 13 19

12.8

104 103

NET DEBT (£m)
7.5

£6.0m

(2018: £7.5m) 15 16 17 18 19

Expectations upgraded in the Il y2ar trading update on 7 Way 2019

2 Profit before tax £ 3 5 millon (2518 £ 2 3 millon; plus ransacton ¢osts £1 2 millan (2018 £1.2 million) and amortisaton of ntangible assers ansing on acqu s.ncns £2.4 million

(2008 £19 milhon}

3 See reconcidiation nnote 9

4 Profit oefore tax £3.5 millon (2018 £2.3 millon) plus interest £0 5 million {2018, £0 5 mullen). transacion costs £1.2 mullion (207 £ 4 millior), amaor tisatior of intargible
assels anising an acgquisitions £2 4 million (2018 £19 rillien). software amortisation £6.2 million 12018 £0 2 mullior}, depreciaton £0 6 reillion (2018 £0 5 melhon) and

share-based payments £G 1 milhon (20" 8 £0.3 million)
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Business model

Our aims

» Provide our clients with innovative and
entrepreneurial advice and solutions.

Our key strengths

People

o Highly experienced and qualified
professionals

¢ Local knowledge

¢ Entrepreneurial approach

Clients and relationships
« Diverse ciient base

¢ Enduring relationships

Know how

« Creative, problem-solving expertise
+ Established business practices

= Market knowledge

» Brand and reputation

Financial

« Strong financial position enabling investment

in and development of the group

06 Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2018

« Ensure that our people enjoy working for the group.
can develop their talents and fulfil their potential.

Our activities

Anumber of the group’s activities are influenced
by the general economic environment and are likely
to perform better in differing economic climates.

65%

20%

15%

Profile reflects current group structure including annualised impact
of recent acquisitions,
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« Increase shareholder value through increasing
the scale and quality of cur operating businesses,
growing earnings per share and paying dividends.

Our culture and values

Values
« Trusted advisor to our clients

+ AcCtwith integrity

» Take pride in our advice and solutions
Counter-cyclical activities provided to clients
¢ Corpaorate and personal insolvency
Business and financial restructuring
¢ Debtadvisory

-

Governance
» Board oversight

Accelerated corporate finance

Distressed asset valuations and sales
{property, machinery and other business assets) ¢ Highly experienced teadership teamin

Specialist insurance and executive and senior management positions
vacant property risk management

Cyclical activities

» Corporate finance Risk management

» Commercial property agency s Established business and risk
» Valuation of property, businesses, machinery
and business assets

* Transport planning and design » Dedicated compliance functions

management processes

» Business diversification to reduce

exposure Lo one activity or changes
Uncorrelated activities 1n the business cycle

* Property auctions

¢ Machinery and other business asset sales
¢ Commercial preperty management

* Bulding consultancy

¢ Due diigence and transaction support

s Forensic accounting and investigations

Annual report and accounts 2019 Beghies Traynor Group plc 07
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Our strategy

Be a trusted advisor to all of our clients, delivering
innovative and entrepreneurial advice and solutions.

Increase the scale and quality of our businesses through both:

Organic growth
s recruitment of new talent;

» retention and development of our existing
partners and employges;

« enhanced cross-selling of our service lines
and expertise to our wider client base; and

+ investment in technolegy and processes
to enhance working practices and improve
the service to our clients,

Acquisitive growth
« inselvency acquisitions to increase market share;

« property services acquisitions to enhance
expertise or geographical coverage; and

« complementary professional services
businesses to continue the development
of the group and its service offering.

Deliver sustainable profitable growth, enabling increased shareholder value.

Maintain our strong financial position, enabling the
investment in and development of the group and its people.

Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2019




Our key performance indicators
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How we have performed

The board uses the following KPIs to manage the performance of the business:

524 601
REVENUE {£m) 497 '

£60.Tm

17 18 19

(2018 £52.4my

The measure
Revenue generated from operating activities in the
financial year.

The target

To increase revenue by expanding the scale and quality
of our operating businesses both organically and through
strategic acquisitions

4.9
ADJUSTED BASIC EPS (p) a3 00
(2018 40p) 17 18 19

The measure
Adjusted EPS is calculated by dividing adjusted profits by
the weighted average diluted number of shares in 1ssue.

The target
To deliver growth in EPS to increase sharehcider value.

ADJUSTED PROFIT 71
BEFORE TAX (Em) 56

£71m

(2018 £5.6m) 17 18 19

The measure

Profit before tax generated by the business in the year,
adjusted to exclude items which arise due to acquisitions,
which are charged to the income statement under IFRS 3 and
are not influenced by the day-to-day operations of the group.

The target
To deliver sustainable growth in adjusted profit before tax.

10.3
NET DEBT (£m) 75

£6 O 6.0
(2018 £7 5m) 17 18 19

The measure
Borrowings net of cash balances

The target

Ta maintain a strong finanoal position with sufficient
capacity in our capital structure to enable continuing
investment in the business with the ability to act
swiftly when opportunities arise.

Annual report and accounts 2019 Beghies Traynor Group plc
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Strategic report

Operating and finance review

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

Nick Taylor
Group finance director

Business recovery and financial

advisory services

383 433
REVENUE (£m) 362 ‘
{2018: £38.3m) 17 18 19
8.7
SEGMENTAL _ e
PROFITS (£m)
(2018 £7.6m}) 17 18 19
Property services
16.7
REVENUE (£m) 135 142
{2018: £14.2m) 17 18 19
SEGMENTAL 38
PROFITS (fm) 29 3.1
17 18 19

(2018: £3 1m}

Business recovery and financial

advisory services

Revenue increased by 132.2% to £43 3 milhion (2018: £38.3 mullion),
reflecting the benefit of increased market activity levels; the
continuing development of our advisory services, with the prior
year acquisition of Springboard Corporate Finance; and the
benefitpf crganic growth initistives.

Operating costs increased by £3.9 millien to £34.6 million
{2018:; £30.7 million) principally as a result of costs associated
with acquired businesses, organic investment and increased
people costs.

Segmental profits' increased by 14.5% to £8.7 million
{2018 £7.6 million) with margins of 20.0% (2018: 19.8%).

Insclvency volumes nationally increased, with the underlying
number of corporate insolvencies® in calendar year 2018 growing
by 10% to 16,106 {2017: 14,630). In this improving market, we have
maintained our market share, continuing to take the largest
number of corporate insolvency appointrments in the UK.

We have strengthened ocur team through the recruitment

of work-winning senior people and continued to develop our
existing teams. We also completed the acquisition of two insolvency
boutiques (KRE (Narth East) in Newcastle and Dunion & Con
Stoke-on-Trent) with seven partners and staff joining the group
and integrating with our existing teams.

Cur advisory activities increasad in the year, benefiting from
thefull year impact of the acquisition of Springboard Cerporate
Finance. The team performed well in the year, advising on

15 pompleted transactions for a gross value of £117 million,

The number of people employed in the division has increased to
364 as at 30 April 2019 from 351 at the start of the financial year.

1 Seenole 4

2 Source The Insolvency Service quarterly statistics an the number of corparate insolvenaies ¢ “ngland and Wales on a seasonally
adjusted hasis, excluding the one-off effect of 1,349 (20" 7 2,686) bulk ‘nsolvencies as iderti®ad by The Insulvency Serv ce
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Property services

Revenue trcreased by 18.2% to £16 7 million (2018: £14.2 mllion),
with strong financial performance across the division reflecting the
benefit of both current and prior year acquisitions, organic growth
inivatives and the completion of several property Inselvencies
Operating costs increased by £1.8 million to £12.8 million

(2018, £11.1 million) due to acquired businesses and organic
Investment costs.

Segmental profits’ increased 1o £3.8 milion (2018: £3.1 mullion)
with margins increasing to 22.5% (2018: 22.1%).

During the year we completed several lang-running property
insolvencies, which enhanced margin in the year. We have continued
to Invest in our property valuation team, through the recruitment
of experienced surveyors, which has improved cur geographical
coverage and pesitions the business well for future years.

Our asset disposal teams performed well. Property auction levels
were broadly in line with the prior year We continue to complete
the majority of our sales through in-room auctions but have during
the year introduced an online platform Machinery and business
asset actvity levels increased following our prior year acquisition
of the CJM Asset Management business, which has integrated

well with our existing team.

The building consulting team had a very successful year, increasing
our instructions from the education sector which has been akey area
of development. We have increased the size of cur team through
recruitment and it is well positioned to continue to grow.

The division completed two acquisitions 1n the year, which have
increased both our expertise and geographical coverage.

inJanuary 2019, we compieted the acquisition of Croft Transpart
Planning & Design (‘Croft'), with the ten employees and management
Joining our Manchester office Croft provides highways, transport and
traffic planning advice gn commercial, residential and mixed-use
schemes 1o a corporate chent base, which includes developers, house
bullders and land owners. This expands the consultancy services
we can offer to real estate developers and corporate clients.

In Aprit 2019, we acquired Barker Storey Matthews {BSM'), an
independent firm of chartered surveyors with offices in Cambridge,
Huntingdon, Peterborough and Bury St Edmunds, with 38 empioyees
joining Eddisons. The core services offered are commercial property
agency, property management, building consultancy, professional
services (Including valuations) and planning services, consistent with
our core service offerings. BSM was ranked the overall winner for
Eastern England in the EG Deals Competition 2018 for commercial
property agents. The addition of the BSM team expands our
geographical coverage.

The nurnber of pecple employed in the division has increased to
245 as at 30 April 2019 from 182 at the start of the financial year.

Partners and employees

As at 30 April 2019, the group employed a total of 650 partners
and staff (2018. 576); this compnses 486 fee earners and 164
support staff.

Strategic report / Corporate governance / Financial statements

Financial summary

2019 2018
£m £m

Revenue 60.1 524
Operating profit (before transaction
costs and amortisation) 7.6 6.1
Interest cosis {0.5) {0.5)
Adjusted profit before tax 7.1 56
Transaction costs (1.2) {1.4)
Amortisation of ntangible assets
arising on acquisitions (2.4) (1.9
Profit before tax 35 23
Tax 1.1 (0.9)
Profit for the year 2.4 1.4

Operating result (before transaction costs
and amortisation)

Revenue in the year increased by £7.7 million to £60.1 million
(2018 £52.4 million), an overall increase of 14.5% in the year,
of which 8.6% was organic and 5.9% was acquired.

Operating margins increased in the year to 12.6% (2018. 11.6%),
due to increased segmental margins in both divisions and the
benefit of operating leverage as the business has grown. Operating
profit increased by 24.7% to £76 million {2018: £6.1 millicn).

Adjusted profit before tax increased by £1.5 million to £7.1 millian
(2018 £56 milliom), an increase of 26.7% in the year as a result of
the increased operating profits with interest costs in line with
the prior year.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts wath Customers’and IFRS 9
‘Financial instruments’ have been implemented with effect from

1 May 2018. The adeoption of these standards had a minimal impact
on reported revenue, profit and earnings per share in the current
year. We have applied these standards using the retrospective
application method, giving an opening adjustment to retained
earnmgs rather than a restatement of prior periods. This is
detailed further in note 1.

Tax

The overall tax charge for the year was £1.7 million {2018: £8.9 million},
giving an effective rate of 31% (2018: 38%). This compnised a charge
on adjusted profit befare tax of £1.6 million (2018 £1.3 million),
partially offset by a tax credit resulting from transaction costs

and amornsation of £0.5 million (2018 £0 4 million). The tax rate

on adjusted profits was 22%, in line with the prior year.

1 seereconchation Innute 4
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Operating and finance review continued

Earnings per share

Adjusted basic earnings per share' increased by 22 5% to
4.9 pence {2018 4.0 pence). Basic earmings per share increased
to 2.2 pence (2018 1.3 pence).

Acquisitions
During the year the group completed four acquisitions:

s Croft Transport Planning & Design on 31 January 2019 for inival
consideration of £1.5 mitlicn (£1.125 miltion in cash and the 1ssue
of 640,150 new ordinary shares) with a maximum additional cash
payment of £2.5 millon subject to financial performance in the
five year pericd following the acquisition

KRE {North East) on 13 February 2019 for mitial consideration of
£0.45 million {in cash) with a maximum additional cash payment
of £0.15 million subject to financial performance in the one year
period following the acguisition,

Dunion & Coon 1 March 2018 for initial consideration of £3.7 million
{in cash}with a maximum additional cash payment of £0.1 million
subject to financial performance in the two year period following
the acquisition.

Barker Storey Matthews on 5 Aprid 2019 for initial consideration
of £1.6 million (£1.067 million in cash and the issue of 844,290
new ordinary shares) with a maximum additional cash payment
of £1.4 million subject to financial performance in the three year
period following the acquisition.

The net cash outflow from acquisitions in the year was £1.2 million,
comprising the cash consideration of £2.7 riflion net of cash
acquired of £1.5 millon.

The acquired businesses have performad in line with expectations
in the post-acquisition period and the integration with our existing
businesses is progressing well

A proportion of the consideration payable for these acquisitions
reguires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed

by the selling shareholders These amounts are accounted for as
deemed remuneration and charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive iIncome over the period of the service obligation.
The value of net assets acquired exceeds the accounting value of
consideration and consequently a gain of £2 9 million has been
recognised within transaction costs in the year

Financing

Net debt at the year end reduced to £6.0 million (2018: £7.5 million).
This reflected cash generated from operations in the year of
£7.2 million {2018: £7.5 milon) partially offset by investmentn
acquisitions (net of cash acquired), deferred consideration payments
and capital expenditure of £3.2 million (2018: £2.4 million) and
dividends paid of £2.6 million (2018: £2 4 million}

During the year, we agreed an extension to our banking facilities
with HSBC, which now provides the group with a committed faciity
until 2023. These facilities are unsecured, mature on 31 August 2023
and comprise a £25 million committed revolving credit facility and
a £5 millian uncornmitted acquisition facility.

During the year, ail bank covenants were cormfortably met and
the group remains in a strong financial position As 3 result
of the reduced levels of debt together with increased profits,
our leverage {calculated as net debt to EBITDA') improved

o 0.7 times {2018: 1.1 umes).

Net assets

AL 30 April 2019 net assets were £59 7 milhon (2018: £59.1 million;.
The movement in net assets reflects an increase of £2.9 million
from post-tax adjusted earnings of £5.5 million net of dividends
of £2.6 million; £2.2 million from the issue of new shares, principally
in relation to acquisitions, offset by a reduction of £1.4 million from
the adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 May 2018 (see note 1) and
the post-tax impact of acquisiticn-related transaction and
amartisation costs of £3.1 million.

© Profit hefore rax £3 S rolbon (2008 £2.3 milliony plus nterest £0 5 millfion (2018 £0.5 mulliory, transacuor wasts £1 2 milien (2018, £1.4 milhon} and amortisation o irtangible
35320y anSINg o acquisit ons £2 4 million (208 £1.% mill en), software amorusation £0 2 miflion (2218, £0 2 million), depreciat-on £0 6 million (2278 £0 5 m l on} and share-based

vayments £0.1 millien {2013 £0 2 milion)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The operations of the group and the implementation of the group's strategy involve a number of risks and uncertaintias, the principal
of which are described in the table below

Controls to reduce rnisk are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or 10ss.

Risk
Marketplace

The group's markets are susceptible to macroeconomic movements,
such as interest rates, GDP changes and indebtedness levels.

The group operates In a highly competitive market ard 1s rehiant

on the flow of new assignments,

Operational gearing

The business is operat onally geared with a high proportion of
saiary and property costs, which cannot be immediately varied
Consequently, the group’s orofitability is liable to short-term
fluctuations dependent on activity levels.

Reliance on key personnel

The business is deperdent upon the professional development,
recruitment and retention of high quality professionel partners
and staff.

Legal and regulation

The group operates in regulated markets. Failure to comply with,
or changes in, regulation or legislatior may have an adverse
impact on the activities of the business.

Mitigating activities

This risk s managed through a consistent effortin marketing and selling
acivity and maintaining strong relationships with key work providers, including
financial Institutions, investors and other professional Intermeciaries,

This risk is managed through flexing oJr resource levels, where possible, to
align with currert and ant cipated tevels of activity, together with the control
of other discretionary items of expenditure. A prudent level of spare capaaty
is retained 1o facilitate peaks in activity.

The group manages the risk of high staff turnover threugh attention
to human resource issues and the monitoring of remuneration levels
aganst the wider market, including long-term incentive arrangements.

To ensure compliance with relevant legislation in performing regulated
activities, the group has dedicated compliance functions which maintain
procedures and policies in line with current legisiation

In the ordinary course of business, certain aspects of the group’s
services are opinion based and may be subject to challenge.

Liquidity risk

The group's ability to generate cash from its insolvency appointments
is usually reliant on asset realisations. A deterioration in realisations
in the short term could ~educe the group's operating cash generation
and increase 1ts financing requirements.

Failure or interruption in IT systems

Amajor fallure in the groun's IT systems may result in either a loss
or corruption of data or an interruption in client service, which may
Fave a consequential impact on our reputation and profitability.

There is a risk that an attack on our IT systems by a malicious
indwidual or group may be successful and impact on the
availability of these systems.

Where appropriate, the group will seek third-party professioral corroboration
In addition, the group has appropriate professional incemnity insurance.

The group rcnitors its risk of a shortage in furds through regular cash management
and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroom within its banking faclities.

The group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexigility through the use of its committed banking facllites, together with bank
overdrafts and loans, finance leases and hire purchase contracts if requirec.

Specific off-site back-up and resilience reguirements have been built into our
IT systems which have been set up, as far as reasonably practicable, to prevent
unauthorised access and mitigate the impact and hikelihood of a major IT
failure or cyber attack. The group is Cyber Essentials Plus accredited.

The group has disaszer recovery plans in place to cover residual risks which
canrot be mitigated

The group 1s constantly reviewing its processes and resllience in this area
due to the increasing threat landscape

Going concern
Disclosures are presented in note 2 to the financial statements around the basis on which the directors have continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing these financial statements

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
8 July 2019 8 July 2019
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Corporate governance

Chairman’s introduction

“ The board is committed to maintaining
high standards of governance.”

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

fThe board 1s commutted to mantaining high standards of
corperate governance As chairman, itis my rele 1o ensure that
these standards are promoted by the board and to ensure that the
group is managed in the bestinterests of sharehclders and our
broader stakeholder group. During the year, we have formalised
our governance pelices by adopting the QCA Corporate
Governance Code ('the QCA Code’),

We recognise that a positive culture, together with a robust
approach to governance, is key to the success of the organisation
As a professional services consultancy the group's services are
regulated by externzlly governed codes of practice and ethical
behaviour. These regulatory professional standards are reinforced
by the board which sets the culture of the group in promoting
entrepreneaurial growth against the background of sound
regulatory compliance and ethical standards.

We seek to be a trusted advisor to all of our clients, to act with
integrity at all times and to take pride in the advice and solutions
we provide,
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We have a clear approach to governance and risk management
with a highly experienced leadership team in executive and senior
management positions together with robust compliance and
governance procedures. We are committed to a cuiture which
ensures that our people enjoy working for the group, can develop
their talents and fulfil therr potential with us.

In the following sections we have provided detalls on our
approach to governance and the adoption of the QCA Code,
including reports from the audit and remuneraticn committees.

| believe that the adoption of the QCA Code will contribute to our
ability to deliver long-term shareholder value and assist the board in
managing the business for all of 1ts stakeholders, whilst maintaining
a flexible, efficient and effective management framework within
an entrepreneurial environmernt.

Further detail on gur compliance with the QCA Code can be
found on our website at www . begbies-traynorgroup.com/
investar-relations/company-information

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman



Board of directors

Ric Traynor (age 59)
Executive chairman
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Nick Taylor (age 48)
Group finance director

Mark Fry (age s

Head of business recovery and advisory

Agppointment date: May 2004

Experience

Ric has been an insolvency practiuoner since
qualifying as & chartered accountant with
Arthur Ardersen in 1984. He established
Trayror & Co. in 1389 which, following the
acquisition of Begbies London in 1897,
became Begbies Traynor.

Ri¢ has focussed on the development of the
business, including the group’s successul
introduction to AIM in 2004, and on practice
management He continues to lead the
business and rernains a major shareholder,

John May (age 64)

Non-executive director

Appointment date: December 2010

Experience

Nick was appointea to the board as group
finance director in 2010, having joined the
group as firancial contraller in 2007, He is

a chartered accountant who qualified with
KPMG and previously held senior finance roles
in United Utilities PLC and Vertex Data Science
Limited, the business process oursourcer,

Graham McInnes (age 67)
Non-executive director

Appointment date: july 2011

Experience

Mark was appointed to the board in 2011,
having joinec the group in 2005 following an
acquisition. He led our London and South East
region prior to his board appointment and
plays a key role in developing the group's
adwvisory practice.

Mark acts as an insclvency practitioner, has been
appointed on numerous complex and high-profile
assignments, and 1s a former president of the
Insolvency Practitionars Assocation.

Mark Stupples (age 57)

Non-executive director

Appointment date: October 2007

Experience

Jonn was appointed to the board in 2007
as a non-executive director. He 1s also the
independant chairman of the AFI Group.
Jonn was an executive director of Caledonia
Investments plc and previously worked for
the Hambros Group for over 20 years,
wnere he was an executive director

of Hambros Bank and joint managing
director of Hambro Countrywide.

Appointment date: September 2004

Experience

Graharm was appointed to the board in 2004,
initially as group finance director and
subsequently as corporate development
director. In 2012, Graham became a non-
executive director. He has held a number of
senior finance positions nclud'ng corporate
finance partner at Spicer and Oppenheim
{(nowpart of Deloitte) ard finance director of
Enterprise plc, in addition to developing his
own corporate finance boutique in the 1990s.
Graham s also a director of Newton
Technology Group ple, a group specialising
infhe engineering technology sector.

Appointment date; July 2017

Experience

Mark was appointed to tre board in 2017

as a non-executive director He has significant
property services experience as a result of his
senior roles in major firms, including King Sturge
as UK managing partner, when he negotiated
the sale of tne business to JLL. Following the
acquisition, Mark was appointed as JLL's UK
chief gperating officer until leaving the business
In December 2016, During this time, he completed
a number of UK acquisitions. Mark now runs s
own consultancy business focussing on strategy
and change in professional services businesses,
and 15 the chairman of Jones Lang LaSalle
Pension Trustees L mited
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Corporate governance

Corporate governance statement

Overview
The group has established specific committees and implemented
certain policies, to ensure that:

s t1sied by an effective board which is collectively responsible for
creating and sustaining shareholder value through management
of the business,

o the board and its committees have the appropriate balance of
skills, experience, independence, and knowledge of the group
to enable them to discharge their respective duties and
responsibiities effectively;

» the board have a formal and transparent arrangement
for considering how to apply the corporate reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the group's auditor; and

* thereis a dialogue with shareholders based an the mutual
understanding of objectives.

In addition, the group has adopted polictes in relation to
anti-corruption and bribery; whistleblowing; health and safety,
IT, communications and systems; and socal media, so that all
aspects of the group are run in a robust and responsible way.

Responsibilities of the board
The board is responsible for creating and sustaining sharehclder
value through management of the business. It does this by:

* setting the strategy and direction of the company;

¢ maintaining appropriate controls te ensure the effective
operation of the company,

approving revenue and capital budgets and plans;

approving financial statements, material agreements and
non-recurring projects,

« determining the financial structure of the company including
treasury and dividend policy;

¢ overseeing control, audit and nsk management; and
¢ setting and monitoring remuneration policies.

Specific responsibilities have been delegated to committees of the
board, being the audit and remuneration committees. The terms of
reference for these committees are available on the group‘s website.

In the absence of a formal nominations committee the beard is
responsible for ensuring that it retains an appropriate composition
and balance of skills and expertise together with considering
refevant succession.
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Operational management of the group's respecuve divisions

1s delegated by the board to two principal operating boards
{business recovery and advisory services and property services)
which comprise relevant members of the group’s executive and
non-executive directors, together with senior partners and
managers from the respective divisions.

Board members

It 13 important that the board contains the right mix of skills and
experience in order to deliver the strategy of the group. As such,
the board s comprised of the executive chairman, two other
executive directors and three non-executive directors.

Role of the executive chairman

Ric Traynor, who established the business and led the group’s
introduction to AIM, fulfils the role of executive chairman being
responsible for the workings and leadership of the board together
with managing the business with the support of the other
executive directors.

Whilst the QCA Code requires the chairman to have adequate
separation from the day-to-day business, the board believes the
current rote is appropriate and in the best interests of the group.
In recognition of this non-compliance with the QCA Code the board
comprises an equal number of non-executive to executive directors,
to offer robust and independent challenge of all board decision making,
and has appointed Graham Mcinnes, one of Its non-executive
directors, as a senior independent directar.

Executive directors

The group has two executive directors, in addition to the executive
chairman, who are responsible for managing the delivery of the
business plans within the strategy set by the board

Non-executive directors

The group has three non-executive directors {NEDs') The NED's
role is to provide oversight and scrutiny of the performance of the
executive directors, helping the business to develop, comrmunicate
and execute its agreed strategy within the defined risk
management framework.

The NEDs are expectad to attend all board meetings, any
committee meetings of which they are a member and the annual
general meeting. In addition, Mark Stupples i1s the non-executive
chairman of the property services operating board. NEDs are
expected to dedicate sufficient time to the group's affairs to
enable them to fulfil their duties as directors.

The board considers that the three NEDs are independent of
management and have no business or other relaticnship which
could interfere materially with the exercise of their judgement.



Company secretary

The company secretary provides advice and guidance to the extent
required by the board on the legal and regulatory environment
and assists the chairman in preparing for and running effective
board meetings, including the umely dissemination of appropriate
information. All directors have access to the company secretary
and all group records. Each director 15 authorised 10 take external
advice at the expense of the company in support of his duties. The
company secretary also acts as the link between the company and
sharsholders on matters of governance and investor relations.

Election of directors

Each director serves on the board until the annual general meating
following his or her election or appointment where the director
must stand for re-election. In accordance with the group’s articles
of assaciation one third of the directors are re-elected on an annual
basis, with those directers who have been in office the longest
being subject to this requirement.

In addition, in accordance with the QCA Code, any independent
non-executive diractors who have served for more than nine years
will stand for re-election at each AGM.
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Board evaluation

An evaluation of board performance was conductaed during

the year facilitated by the company secretary. This was the first
evaluation that we have completed following the adoption of the
QCA Cede. The process involved the completion of a questionnaire
by each director focussed on the ten principtes of the QCA Code.

The results were then discussed by the board collectively with areas
for development being agreed. These included developing and
aligning the group around a single key vision; prioritising investor
relations and shareholder and market feedback; and conducting

a review of the group’s current CSR ininiatives, The evaluation also
considered the nead for the board to allocate time to hold a strategy
review 1o assess the board’s longgerm vision and strategy.

Board meetings

The full board meats formalty on a quarterly basis and informally
where relevant throughout the year Agendas for these meetings
formalise the matters reserved for decision by the board with
papers circulated in advance for consideration and comment.
Meetings are structured to allow for the open discussion and
debate of the key issues.

The board met six times during the year, Attendance at meetings
during the financial year 1s shown in the table below:

Board Meetirgs

meetings eligible to

Director attended attend
Ric Traynor 6 &
Nick Taylor 6 6
Mark Fry 5 &
John May ) 6
Graham Mclnnes 5 6
Mark Stupples o 6

Date an which this information was last reviewed: 8 July 2019,
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Corporate governance

Audit committee report

Graham McInnes

Chairman of the_
lpudit committee

On behalf of the board | am pleased to present the audit
committee report for the year ended 30 April 2019

Members of the audit committee

The audit committee has two members, each of whom s

an independent, non-executive director, | am the chairman

of the commuttee and John May is the other current member of
the committee, The group company secretary is at the disposal
of the commuttee to advise and assist both of the members

The executive chairman, the group finance director and a
representative of the group’s external auditor are permitted to
attend meetings of the committee by invitation only. The cammittee
meets at least three times a year, in accordance with its terms

of reference.

The committee’s terms of reference are avallable on the
group's website. Its principal responsidilities are to review and
discuss governance, financial reporting and internal control and
risk management.

Duties
During the year the commuttee discharged its responsibilities by:

* approving the external auditor's plan for the audit of the group's
annual financial statements, including key audit matters,
keyisks, confirmation of auditor independence and terms
of pngagement and audit fees,

e reviewing the group's draft annual report and accounts and the
externat auditor's detalled audit completion report including the
consideration of key audit matters and risks;

e reviewing the group's half year and full year resuits announcements;

* reviewing a report by management refating to the adeption of
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts
with Customers' in this financial year. Following discussions with
management and the external auditor the committee approved
the adoption and disclosures of these revised accounting pelicies,

* reviewing the performance of the external auditor, and

s reviewing the group’s risk management process including the
group’s key risks and mitigations.

Role of the external auditor

The committee moniters the relationship with the external
auditor, BDO, to ensure that auditor independence and objectivity
are maintained BDO has been the company’s auditor since 2017,
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which followed a tender process. The committee will keep under
review the need for a further external tender. Any instruczion
for BDO to provide non-audit services 1o the group must be
approved in advance by the committee Fees payable to BDO
for non-audit services provided during the year were £34,400.

Having reviewed the auditor's independence and performance,
the committee has concluded that these are effective and
recommends that BDO be reappointed at the next AGM.

Audit process

The auditor prepares an annual planning repart for consideration
by the committee, which details areas of audit focus and anticipated
key audit risks, together with the anticipated level of materiality.
This is reviewed and approved by the committee Following the
audit the auditor presented its findings to the committee. No
significant areas of concern were raised by the external auditor

Internal audit

The committee has considered the need for an internat audit
function and concluded that management is currently able to
derive sufficient assurance on the adeguacy and effectiveness
of internal controls without cne at this time.

Internal controls and risk management

The systems of internal controf and nsk management are

the ultimate responsibility of the board, which sets and reviews
appropriate policies. The systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or {0ss.
Managers are delegated the tasks of implementation and mantenance
of systems in accordance with those policies and the idenufication,
evaluation, management and reporting of risk and control 1ssues
Controls and processes are reviewed on a periodic basis by the
group’s finance and compliance teams with any 1ssues and
recommendations reported to the audit committee.

Budgets are produced annually and key performance targets
within themn are set by the board. Performance against those
budgets s regularly reviewed and variances are investigated and
acted upon by members of the board and both head office and
divisional managers. Reforecasting is undertaken when variances
are material and. if adverse, cannot be eliminated by such action.

The pr naipal risks and uncertainties faced by the group, together with
mitigating activities, are disclosed in the strategic report on page 13.

Attendance at audit committee meetings

The committee met three times during the year and reports to the
board following each meeting Attendance at meetings during the
financial year 1s shown in the table below

Meetirgs % of

Meetings eligible to meatings

Committee member atlended altenc attended
Graham Mclnnes 3 3 100
John May 3 3 100

Graham McInnes
Chairman of the audit committee
8 July 2019
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Remuneration committee report

John May
Chairman of the,
Femuneration committee

Remuneration committee report

I am pleased to present this remuneration report, which sets out
the remuneration policy and the remuneration paid to the directors
for the year.

Members of the remuneration committee

The remuneratcn committee has two members, each of whom is
anindependent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of the
committee and Graham Mcinnes is the other current member of
the committee. The group company secretary is at the disposal
of the committee to advise and assist both of the members

The executive chairman is invited to attend meetings of the
committee for discussion on executive remuneration matters save
for those relating to himself. The committee meets at least once
ayear, in accordance with its terms of reference.

The commirttee’s terms of reference are available cn the
group’s website. fts principal responsibilities are to determine the
remuneration payable to the executive directers and approve any

management long-term incentive and share-based payment schemes.

Policy
The remuneration policy of the group is driven by our approach
to align the best interests of shareholders and management.

The committee locks 1o set remuneration for executive directors
at appropriate market levels, with reference to the roles and
responsitilities of those directors. Incentive arrangements which
provide appropriate reward and incentive are implemented and
measured against key performance criteria designed to promote
the best interests of shareholders.

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration arrangements for Ric Traynor and Nick Taylor
caonsist of a basic salary or directors' fees and fixed profit share,
together with an annual bonus. In addition, they receive income
protection insurance, private medical insurance and the provision
of a company car or cash allowance. Nick Taylor also receves
death in service berefits.

The executive bonus scheme, which is applicable to Ric Traynor
and Nick Taylor, pays a percentage of salary/fixed profit share based
on maintaining or growing the group's adjusted earnmngs per share
in the year, with a maximum bonus payable for growth of at least
20%. Full bonus payments were achieved in the year.

Mark Fry is an equity member of Begbies Traynor {London) LLP
('the LLP"), a subsidiary of the group in which the group has a
controlling interest. During the financial year, he received a fully
variable profit share, determined as a proportion of the profits
of the LLP which isin fine with the comparative peried. In addition
Mark Fry receives a fixed director's fee and the provision

of 2 company car.

None of the directors participate in the group’s defined contribution
pension scheme.

Long-term incentive plans

The share-based incentive scheme which has been putin place
for some of the executive directors seeks 1o incentivise the relevant
executive directors to enhance shareholder value through growing
the group's share price. Details of the group’s share-based incentive
schemes are set out on page 54 with a proportion of such awards
also being conditional on delivering sustained growth in earnings
and total shareholder return No additional awards under this
scheme were made in the year

Non-executive directors
Non-executive directors’ remuneration is determined by the board
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Corporate governance

Remuneration committee report continued

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’
fees ang profit Var atle Benefits 2019 2018
share/salary crofitsnare Boras n kird total roral
Narre of director £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive
Ric Traynor 323.312 — 225,000 26,683 574,995 573,737
Nick Taylor 200,000 — 95,000 1183 296,183 296,072
Mark Fry 15,000 958,920 — 30,000 1,003,920 634,979
Non-executive
John May 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000
Mark Stupples 40,000 — — — 40,000 32,290
Aggregate emaoluments 658,312 958,920 320,000 57,866 1,995,098 1,667,078

Directors’ share options

Aggregate emoluments disclosed abave do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire crdinary shares in the company

granted to or held by the directors Details of share option awards for directors who served during the year are as follows:

Nurnber at Grantee Exeruised Exsired Number at txe;:ig Earhast Sxpiry
Narne of director 1 May 2018 In year in year nyear 30 April 2019 {pence) exercise date date
Mark Fry 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 36.7 30 April 2016 25 Qctober 2023
Nick Taylor 125,000 — {125,000) — —_ 367 30 April 2016 25 Cctober 2023
250,000 — — — 250,000 510 25 July 2017 25 July 2024
500,000 — — — 500,000 631 371 October 2020 31 October 2028

The market price of the company's shares at the end of the financial year was 60 pence and the range of market prices during the year

was 58 pence to 75 pence,

Detalls of share opticns granted by the company at 3¢ April 2019 are given in note 19. None of the terms and conditions of the share
opttons were varied in the year. Gains on options exercised in the year were £44,763.

Directors’ interests

The directors who held office at 30 April 2019 had the following interests in the shares of the group:

30 April 2019 * May 2018
Name of directors Description of shares number % nurnber %
Ric Traynor Qrdinary shares 27,178,980 23.77 27178980 24.68
Nick Taylor Ordinary shares 117,540 0.10 80,798 0.07
Mark Fry Ordinary shares 127,466 .11 127466 0.12
John May Ordinary shares 276,574 0.24 276,574 0.25
Graham Mcinnes Ordinary shares 917,432 0.80 917,432 Q.83
Mark Stupples Ordinary shares 30,727 0.03 — —

No changes took place in the interests of directors between 30 Aprl 2019 and 8 July 2019,

John May
Chairman of the remuneration committee
8 July 2019
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the
group, together with the financial statements and auditor's report
for the year ended 30 Apr:l 201%. The chairman’s statemenit,
strategic report, directors' remuneration report and corporate
governance statement form part of the directors’ repert and

are incorporated nto it by cross-reference.

Directors
The names and brief biographical details of the directors are
shown on page 15,

Risks and uncertainties
The principal business rnsks and uncertainties to which the company
15 exposed are detalled on page 13 of the strategic report.

Dividends

The directors recommend a final dividend of 1.8 pence (201817 pence
per ordinary share) to be paid on 7 November 2019 to shareholders
on the register at 11 October 2019. This, together with the intenm
dividend cf 0.8 pence paid on 9 May 2019{2018. 0.7 pence). makes

a total dividend of 2.6 pence for the year (2018 2.4 pence).

Substantial shareholdings

On 1 July 2019, the company had been notified, 1n accordance
with sections 791 to 828 of the Companies Act 2006, of the following
interests in the ordinary share capital of the company:

Percentage
Name of holder Number Feld
Hof Hoorneman Bankiers 11,848,158 10.35
Fidelity International 9,077,452 793
OVMK Vermogensbeheer 6,984,326 6.10
Close Brothers Asset Management 5,912,296 516
Alllanz Global Investors 4,074,540 356
Nordea Asset Management 3,574,547 313

Other than the above holdings and those of the directors
{see page 20y, the board 1s not aware of any beneficial holdings
in excess of 3% of the issued share capital of the company

Financial instruments
The financial nsk management objectives and policies of the group
are shown in note 17.

Capital structure
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the
movements in share capital during the year, are shown in note 18.

Political donations
The company made no pelitical donations during the year.
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Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always
fully considered, bearing in mind the aputudes of the applicant
concerned Inthe event of members of staff becoming disabled,
every effort 1s made to ensure that ther employment with the
group continues and that appropriate traning Is arranged. Itis
the policy of the group that the training, career development
and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible,
be identical to that of other employees.

Employee involvement

The directors recognise that the guality, motivation and
commitment of cur staff 1s fundamental to the group's success.
The policy of the group 1s to recruit, promote, train and develop
its people by reference to their skills, abilities and other attributes
of value to therr role in the business. The group considers itself
1o be an equal opportunities employer. Employee engagement

1s encouraged through a variety of means including corporate
intranets, team meetings and regular dialogue with employees.

Employees are able to share in the group’s success through
membership of our Sharesave scheme. Sharesave is a
HMRCHpproved save-as-you-earn share option scheme,
whichpllowsparticipants to purchase shares out of the proceeds
of pjinkedavings contract at a price set at the ume of the option
grant, Participants may elect 1o save up to £250 per month and
opticns may normally be exercised in the six months following
thematurity of the hnked three year savings contract,

Social policies

The activities of the group have a mirimal pollution impact on
the environment and its energy consumption is modest, Due
consideration to environmental issues is given where appointed
insolvency administrators take control of third-party businesses
in the course of their work.

Auditor
Each of the directors at the date of approvat of this annual report
confirms that.

* sofar as the director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information
{as defined in the Companies Act 20086) of which the company's
auditor is unaware; and

» the director has taken alt the steps that he ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
inforration and te establish that the company’s auditor is aware
of that information.

In accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a
resclution will be propesed at the annual general meeting that
BDO LLP be reappointed as auditors

Approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf
of the board

John Humphrey
Company secretary
8 July 2019
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Corporate governance

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the directors have elected
to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporuing Standards ('IFRSs’) as adopted
by the European Union and the company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practuce (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law}, Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and
of the profit or loss of the greup for that peniod. The directors are
also required to prepare financial statements in accordance with
the rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies trading
securities on AN,

in preparing these financial statements, the directars are required to:
» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable
and prudent;

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with [FRSs as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue In business.
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Website publication

The directors are responsible for ensuning the annual report and
the financial statements are made avalable on a website Financial
statements are published on the company’s website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and disseminaten of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other junisdictions The maintenance and integrity
of the company’s website s the responsibility of the directors. The
directors' responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of
the financial statements contained theremn.



Strategic report / Corporate governance / Financial statements

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Begbies Traynor Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Beghies Traynor Group Plc (the ‘Parent Company') and 1ts subsidiaries (the 'Group’) for the
year ended 30 April 2019 which compnise the consohdated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
In equity, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the Company balance sheet, the Company statement of
changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financiat statements s applicable law and
International Financial Reporung Standards {{FRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparaticn of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accountng Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard 1 the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland

{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinicn,

¢ the finrancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 Aprit 2019
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with I[FRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean tmon,

the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK} {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to Listed entities, and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs {UK) require us to report to you where:
» the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate, or

+ the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the Group's or the Parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Financial statements

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Beghies Traynor Group plc

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance In our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most sigruficant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identfied,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and direcung the efforts
of the engagement team These matters were adgdressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Carrying value of goodwill

The Group's goodwill measurement and valuation
palicy is set out In note 2 of these financial statements,
with a summary of goodwill set out on page 46.

In accordance with 1AS 36, an annual impairment
review of goodwill (see note 10} is required at each
year end.

The impairment assessment I1s performed by
management based on comparing the value in use
to the carrying value of goodwill, This calculation
involves a number of management judgements and
estimates, and as such holds the potential for bias
or error. Management's assessment found
significant headroom and concluded no
impairment was required

Furthermore, the £50.2m goodwill figure held in the
statement of financ:al position at the year end is
highly material and there is a risk that this value
may not be supported.

Revenue and unbilled
income recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policy is set out
in note 2 of these financial statements.

In lIine with auditing standards, there is a
presumed significant nsk of fraud in relation to
revenue recognition. We have considered the
application of the Group revenue recognition
policies and determined that the significant risk in
the period I1s that of the overstatement of unbilled
income recorded at year end through either the
manipulation of provisions for unrecoverable
amounts or cut-off of employee costs incurred
arcund year end, from which unbiiled income
balances are calculated. As noted in the accounting
policies (note 2 {J}}, judgements are formed over a
large portfolio of cases meaning individual judgements
are not matenial, however, as a result of the large
number of insolvency cases being handled by the
Group, the aggregate balance of unbilled income
ispignificant. As a result of the significant level of
estimation involved in the balance there is potential
for material misstaternent and significant audit
work was performed in this area.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the audit

+ Management prepared impairment calculations based on the forecasts of
the insolvency cash-generating unit {CGU), to which all the goodwill belongs,
We reviewed the methodology applied by management to ensure consistency
with prior year calculations,

-

We reviewed the assumptions used within the forecast figures for the
insolvency CGU We compared these to the actual results of this CGU in the
financial year ended 30 April 2019, investigating and challenging management
on any unusual or significant movements expected going forward,

¢ We reviewed the key assumptions made within the caiculation. The key
assumptions are considered to be the weighted average cost of capital (WACC),
the growth rate applied to the calculations and the economic cycles assumed in
the model (based on historical trends) as this drives volumes forecast for the
Insolvency practice, which is counter-cyclical to the general economic
environmentin the UK,

* We engaged the use of an internal auditor's expertta consider the
appropriateness of managements WACC estimate, and whether it was
reasonable for use in this calculation.

¢ Management applied sensitivity analysis to those assumptions, see note 10.
We tested those sensitivity calculations and applied our own sensitivity analysis
to the key assumptions to consider the headroom avalable.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the audit

¢ We tested a key control to ensure that there is sufficent challenge placed by
the group finance tearmn on monthly unbilled income estimates and judgements,
incluging provisions. Group finance review and challenge that key estimates
and provisions against unbilled income are appropriately calculated, each
month, by individual insolvency practitioners and fee earners. We have
attended a sample of monthly finance review meetings and chserved the level
of chaltenge and follow up of iIndmvidual cases, which provides assurance over
the internal control in place.

A sample of year end unbilled income balances was tested through
questionnaires being issued to the fee earners and then reviewing their responses
and associated evidence e.g craditors resolutions, property valuations,
balances held in bank accounts, against the year end position set out.

+ We re-performed the stage of completion calculations for a sample of cases
and robustly challenged the jJudgements and estimates made by management
In relation to the status of cases and ultimate recovery of fees.

+ We performed cut-off testing around the year end te ensure revenue had been
recognised in the correct period.

* We also reviewed the stage of completion estimates made in the prior years for
a sample of cases and assessed their accuracy based on actual cutcomes.

+ We performed a high level review of the ageing of year end unbilled income,
to evaluate movements in ageing from the prior year and confirm the ageing
profile is in line with our understanding of the business.
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Our application of materiality

wWe apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning,
we consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic deaisiens of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that
any misstatements exceed materiality, we use a lower matenality level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed.

Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarity be evaluated as immatenal as we also take account of the nature of identfied
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluaung their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality has been set at 70% of matenality. This has been assessed on criteria such as historic adjustment levels, complexity
and the controls of the Group.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows’

Group materiality £350,000 (2018: £275,000)
Group performance materiality £245,000(2018: £192,500)
Parent Company materiality £260,000 (2018. £205,000)

Parent Company performance materiality £182,000(2018: £153,750)

Basis for Group materiality 5% of adjusted profit before tax

Rationale for the benchmark adopted Begbies Traynor Group plc is AIM listed, with profit making intentions, and
significant investors external to the Group. Adjusted profitis considered
to he the key KPI for the Group and as such a profit based materiality
basis 1s considered appropriate We adjusted for amortisation and
transaction costs as these costs do not specifically relate to any
ungerlying operating activities. The adjusted figure gives a more
appropriate basis in line with a benchmark used for business decision
making and used by the investor/shareholder community.

For each component In the Group audit we allocated a materiality lower than our overall Group materiaiity and used £260,000
(2018:§185,000) as a maximum component materiality with a restriction of 75% for performance materiality.

we agreed with the audit committee that we waould report to the committee all iIndividual audit differences identified during the course of
our audit in excess of £14,000 (2018: £13,750). We also agreed to report differences below these thresholds that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

For the five significant components we have identified, we performed a full scope audit of the complete financial information. For the
remaining components, we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had the
potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements, either because of the size of these accounts
orgheir risk profile,

Audits of the companents were performed at a materiahty level calculated by reference te a proportion of Group materiality appropriate
ta the relative scale of the business concerned.

The group audit team conducted the audit of all components of the business and no component auditors were used during the audit process.

Other information

The directors are responsitile for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the fimancial statements does not cover the other
information and, except 10 the extent otherwise explicitly stated in cur report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection wath our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the cther information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise
appears ta be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required o
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. if,
based on the work we have performed, we condlude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

ta the members of Begbies Traynor Group plc

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the informaticn given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements
arejprepared Is consistent with the financial statements, and

o the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment cbtained in the course of
the pudit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o report to you If,
N our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us; or

e the Parent Company financiai statements are not in agreement with the accouating records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditar’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our chyectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
butis nat a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements s located on the Financial Reporoing Council's
website: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company's members, as a body. 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparnies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company's mernbers those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to
anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company's members as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Mark Langford (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Leeds

8 July 2019

BDO LLP s a imited hability partnership registered in England and Wales {with registerad number OC305127)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 April 2019

2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 3 60,058 52,447
Direct costs (34,276) (30,141)
Gross profit 25,782 22,300
Other operating iIncome 393 400
Administrative expenses (22,163) (19,922)
Operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs) 7.553 6,059
Transaction costs 5 {1,180) (1,364)
Amortisation of intangble assets arising on acquisitions 10 (2,361) {1,917)
Operating profit 4,012 2,778
Finance costs (486) (482)
Profit before tax 3,526 2,296
Tax 7 (1,092) (872)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,434 1,424
Earnings per share
Basic 9 2.2 pence 1.3 pence
Dituted 9 2.1 pence 1.3 pence

The profit, comprehensive income and earnings per share is attributable to equity holders of the parent
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 April 2019

Capital

Share Snare Merger redermrpticn Retaneg Total

capital premidm reserve rese-ve earnrgs eqJity

£000 £000 £300 £000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2017 5,640 22,335 18,507 — 11,618 58,100
Total comprehensive income for the year - — — — 1,424 1,424
Dividends — - — — (2,356} (2,356
Credit to equity far equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 295 295
Own shares acquired in the year (304} — — 304 {226} {225}
Shares issued as consideration for
acquisitions 101 — 1,374 — — 1,475
Shares issued as deferred consideration 33 — 367 — — 400
SIP shares issued 3 34 — — — 37
(Other share gptions 35 420 — — {455) —
AT30 April 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 10,300 59,149
Adjustment for changes in accounting
palicy (note 2} — — — — (1,448 {1,448}
AL 1 May 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 8,852 57,701
Total comprehensive incoame for the year — — — — 2,434 2,434
Oividends — — — — (2,649) (2,649}
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 9g 99
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 74 — 834 — — 908
Shares issued as deferred consideration 93 — 1,107 — — 1,200
SIP shares i1ssued 1 7 — — — 8
Other share options 43 394 — — {437) —
At 30 April 2019 5,719 23,190 22189 304 8,209 59,701

A description of the nature and purpose of each reserve is included within note 27.
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2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 59,392 55,061
Property, plant and equipment 1 1,766 1,512
Trade and other receivables 12 3,220 1,759
64,378 62,332
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 32,653 30.829
Cash and cash equivalents 4,009 3518
36,662 34,347
Total assets 101,040 96,679
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 (22,664) (17.268)
Current tax liabilities (1,976) {1548)
Provisions 15 {588) (783)
(25,228) {19,599)
Net current assets 11,434 14748
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 - (1,093)
Borrowings 14 (10,000) {11,000
Provisions 15 (763) 414y
Deferred tax 16 (5,348) (5424
(16,111} {17.931)
Total liabilities {41,339} (37,530
Net assets 59,701 59149
Equity
Share capital 18 5719 5,508
Share premium 23,190 22,789
Merger reserve 22,189 20.248
Capital redemption reserve 304 304
Retamned earnings 8,299 10,300
Equity attributable to owners of the company 59,701 59,149
The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group ple, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors
andfputharised for issue on 8 July 2019. They were signed on its behalf by
Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
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Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 April 2019

2019 2B1&
Nates £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by operations 21 9,178 9,065
Income taxes pad (1,362) (980}
Interest paid (489) (528)
Net cash from operating activities 7,327 7527
Investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets 10 (216) 77
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment 1" (784) (394
Deferred consideration payments (1,030) (1,132)
Acquisition of businesses {net of cash acquired) 20 (1,167) (803)
Net cash used in investing activities (3.197) (2,408)
Financing activities
Dividends paid 3 {2,649) (2,356)
Proceeds on Issue of SIP scheme shares 10 38
Repayment of loans {1,000) {6,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,639) (8,318)
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 491 {3.197)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,518 6,715
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,009 3,518
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2019

1. General information
Begbies Traynor Group plc is a company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered
office 1s 340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in
whichfhe group operates.

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and International Financial Reporting Standards
'IFRS') as adopted by the Furopean Union (EU, including International Accounting Standards '1AS) and Interpretations issued

by the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis and all accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the current and preceding year, apart from those affected by the implementation of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’ and IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments’ as noted in(g) and {)} below. These impact the accounting policies for revenue
and trade receivables.

Going concern

The group's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set outin the
chairman’s statement and strategic report. The financaial position of the group, its cash flows, liguidity position and borrowing facilities
are described in the strategic report.

Furthermaore, notes 14 and 17 to the financial statements include full detaills of the group’s borrowings, in addition to the group's
objectives and policies for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives and its exposures to credit, interest rate
and hquidity risk.

The group has princpal committed banking facilities of £25 million, of which £6 million was utilised (£10 million drawn less £4 million
of cash balances) at 30 April 2019,

In carrying cut their duties in respect of going concern, the directors have completed a review of the group’s current financial position
and cash flow forecasts for a period exceading 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements. This review included
sensitivity analysis to determine the potential impact on the group of reasonably possible downside scenanos. Under all modelled
scenarios, the group's banking facilities were sufficient and all associated covenant measures were forecast to be met.

After making enguiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adept the going concern basis in preparing
the annual report and accounts

Adjusted performance measures

Management believes that adjusted performance measures provide mearnngful information to the users of the accounts on the performance
of the business and are the performance measures used by the board. Accordingly, adjusted measures of cperating profit, profit before tax
and earnings per share exclude, where applicable, transaction costs, amortisation of intangible assets arising on acguisitions and related
tax effects on these items. These terms are not defined terms under IFRSs and may therefore not be comparable with similarly titled profit
measures reported by other companies. They are not intended to be a substitute for, ar supernior to, GAAP measures,

The items excluded from adjusted results are those which arise due to acguisitions and are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in accordance with IFRS 3. They are not influenced by the day-to-day operations of the group.

(b) Basis of cansolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Beghies Traynor Group plc and entities controlled by
Begbies Traynor Group pic (its subsidiaries, which include limited Lability partnerships). Controlis achieved if all three of the foliowing
are achieved: power over the invastes, exposure to variable returns for the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power
to affect those vanable returns.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income.

The results of entities acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the conschdated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, the accounts of the subsidiaries are adjusted to conform to the group's accounting policies All intra-group transactions,
balances, ncome and expenses are eliminated on consohdation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

2. Accounting policies continued

(c) Business combinations

The acquisition of subsigiaries and businesses s accounted for using the acquisition methed. The consideration for each acquisition
Is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, habilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments 1ssued by the group in exchange for control of the acquiree

Contingent consideration 1s initially measured at fair value at the date of the business combination. Any subsequent adjustment to this
fair value {such as meeting an earnings target), where the consideration is payable in cash, is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

In accordance with the IFRS Interpretations Committee's interpretation of paragraph B55 of IFRS 3, the cost of the business combination
excludes consideration which reguires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the seiling shareholders. These amounts
are accounted for as deemed remuneration and are charged to the conselidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
of the service obligation. Consideration paid in advance of the service obligation being delivered is recognised as an asset within trage
and other receivables. The balance Is disclosed within current assets for service obligations in less than 12 menths and in non-current
assets for service obligations after more than 12 months. In the event that the service obligations have been delivered in advance of
thejpayment being made, the resultant habihty 15 recognised within trade and other payables.

ldentifiable assets acquired and hahilities and contngent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. Where the fair value of the assets and liabilities at acquisition cannot be determined rehably in the
initial accounting, these values are considered to be provisicnal for a period of 12 months from the date of acquisition. If additional
information relating to the condition of these assets and labilities at the acquisition date ts obtained within this period, then the
provisional values are adjusted retrospectively. This includes the restatement of comparative information for prior periods.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination aver the group's Interest in the net fair value of the identfiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If the group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, habiliues and contingent Labilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Acquisition costs are recogrnised in the censolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome as incurred and separately disclosed
due to the nature of this expense.

{d) Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consalidation is recognised as an asset,

Following initial recognition, goodw ll is subject to impairment reviews, at least annually, and measured at cost less accumulated
impairment fosses. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income and 1s
not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of the group’s transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts,
subject to being tested for impairment at that date and at least annually thersafter.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are measured inttially at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis ¢ver their estimated useful lives
The carrying amount is reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary.

On a business combination, as well as recording separable intangible assets already recogmised in the balance sheet of the acquired
entity at their fair value, identifiable intangible assets that are separable or arise from contractual or other legat rights are also included
In the acquisition balance sheet at fair value.

Amartrsation is charged within administrative expenses in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income so as to write off the
cost or valuation of assets over their estimated usaful lives, on the following basis:

Software 10%-33% of cost
intangible assets arising on acquisitions  10%-50% of fair value at acquisition
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2. Accounting policies continued
{e} Property, plant and equipment
All assets are stated at histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged 50 as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, on the following basis:

Computers 20%-23% of cost
Motor vehicies 25% on a reducing balance basis
Office equipment 15%-25% of cost

Leasehold improvements  evenly over period of ease

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an assetis determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised within profit or loss for the period.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over therr expected useful tives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the ralevant lease term.

(f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the group réviews the carrymng amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there

is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable armmount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value inuse, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects currant market assessments of the time value and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generaung unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss s recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but s0 that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment [oss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating umit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

(g) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and on-demand deposits and cther short-term highly lquid investments that are
reachly convertible to a known amoeunt of cash and are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other receivables (excluding deemed remuneration)
Trade recaivables are initially recogmised at their transaction price, and then subseguently stated at amortised cost less impairment
provision for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses {ECLs) under IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected toss provision for trade receivables. The group makes specific provisions for lifetime expected credit losses against
trade receivables where additional information is known regarding the recoverability of those balances. For the remaining trade
receivables balances, the group has established an ECL model using provision matrices for recognising ECLs on 1ts trade receivables,
based onits historical credit loss experience over a two year period, adjusted (where appropriate) for forward-locking factors.

Trade recevables are written off where there is no expectation of recovery.
Other receivables are stated at their fair value.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are ininally stated at their fair value and subsequently at amortised cost
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year endad 30 April 2019

2. Accounting policies continued

{g) Financial instruments continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financiat labilities and egquity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered Into.
An egquity INnstrument is any contract thar evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducung all of its liabdities.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs.

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including
prermiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue casts, are accounted for on an amortised cost basis 1o the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they anise.

(h) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it1s probable that
the group will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

(i) Leases
Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee is classified as a finance lease. All ather leases are classified as operating leases.

The group as lessee
Operating lease rentals are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the peried
of the lease even where payrments are not made on such a basis. Lease incentives are spread over the period of the lease.

The group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-ne basis over the term of the relevant lease Imitial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an cperating lease are added to the varying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(j)} Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised when control of a service or product provided by the group 1s transferred to the customer, in line with the group’s
performance obligations in the contract, and at an amount reflecting the consideration the group expects to receive in exchange for the
service or product.

There are no significant judgemnents required in determining the group's performance obligations it its contracts as the sigmificant
majority of contracts contain only one performance obligation.

The group recognises revenue from the following activities
s Insolvency and advisory services;

* corporate finance services;

s commercial property management,

* property consultancy services; and

s commercial property and other business asset disposals.

Insclvency and advisory services

For the group's formal insolvency appointments and other advisory engagements, where remuneraticn is typically determined based on
hours worked by professional partners and staff, the group transfers control of its services over time and recognises revenue over time
if the group:

» provides services for which ithas no alternative use or means of deriving value; and

» has an enforceable right to payment for its performance completed to date, and for formal insolvency appointments has approval
fromjreditors to draw fees which will be paid from asset realisations.

On certain contracts the group may not have enforceable rights to payment at the start of the contract and revenue will not be recognised
until these rights are in place. This may accur on insolvency apgointments where the recovery of assets is subject to litigation or the
realisation of assets is uncertain.
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2. Accounting policies continued
(j) Revenue recognition continued

Insolvency and advisory services continued
Progress on each assignment is measured using an input methed based on costsincurred to date as a percentage of total anticipated costs.

In determining the amount of revenue and the related balance sheet items (such as trade recevables, unoilled income and deferred
income) to recognise in the period, management s required to form a judgement on each individual contract of the total expected
fees and total anticipated costs. These esumates and judgements may change over ume as the engagement completes and this will
be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the peniad 10 which the revision becormes known, These
judgements are formed over & large portfolic of contracts and are therefore unhkely to be individualiy material.

Invoices on formal insolvency appointments are generally raised having achieved approval from creditors to draw fees. This is typically
settled cn a timely basis from case funds. On advisory engagements, invoices are generally raised in line with contract terms.

Where revenue is recognised in advance of the invoice being raised {inline with the recognition criteria above) this is disclosed as unbilled
income within trade and other receivables. Where an invoice is raised in advance of the revenue being recognised, this 1s disclosed as
deferred income within trade and other payables.

Corporate finance services
Generally, revenue 1s recognised at a pointin time on the date of completion of the transaction or when unconditional contracts have been
exchanged. Fees are typically a fixed percentage of the transaction value and are invoiced to the client{and typically payable} on comptetiorn.

Commercial property management

The group manages commercial properties for owners, The primary performance obligation relates to the ongoing management of

the property and revenue is recognised over time on a straight-line basis as the services are performed in line with the contract terms.
The majority of customers are invoiced quarterly in advance, with a deferrad income balance recognised for services still to be delivered

Property consultancy services

The group provides a wide range of professional property services including valuation, bullding consultancy, planning and insurance
broking. Revenue will typically be recognised at a point in time following satisfaction of the performance obligation(s) in the contract,
atwhich point the group 1s typically entitled to invoice the customer, and payment will be due.

Commercial property and other business asset disposals

The group is appainted to sell praperty, machinery and other business assets for clients through physical and enline auctions and

its commercial property agency. Generally, revenue Is recognised at a point in time on the date of completion of the asset sale or when
unconditional contracts for the sale have been exchanged. Fees are typically a fixed percentage of the transaction value and are invoiced
to the client {and typically payable) on completion.

Financing component

In lina with IFRS 15, the group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component
if the group expects, at contract inception, that the period between the group transferring its product or services te a customer and
when the customer pays will be one year or less.

{k) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

{I) Pensions and retirement benefits
The group operates a defined contribution scherme in the United Kingdom for all qualifying employees. The costs of the pension funding
borne by the group are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an expense as they fall due.

(m) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes
the effect of non-rmarket-based vesting conditicns. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in note 19.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market-based vesting conditons. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised esumate,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.

(n) Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is when they
are paid to shareholders. In the case of final dividends, this 1s when approved by the sharehclders at the AGM.
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2. Accounting policies continued
(o) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive Income because it excludes items of Income or expense that are taxabie or deductible in ather years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deducuble. The graup’s lability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacred by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised far all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temperary differences can be

utiised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arisas from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other
than in a business combination) of other assats and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period when the liatility is settled or the asset 15 reahsed.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income except when it relates to items charged
or credited to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a tegally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes by the same taxation authority and the group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

(p) Charge arising under Begbies Traynor London (LLP) put and call option
The anticipated liability to the group under this option (as detailed in note 26} 15 charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
inceme over the period of the contractual obligation, and included as a transaction cost within administrative expenses.

{(q) Critical accounting judgements and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group's accounting policies, the group is required to make certain estimates, jJudgements and assumptions that
it believes are reasonable based upon the information available. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presentad.

On an gngoing basis, the group evaluates irs estimates using historical experience, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable In the particular circumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which is recognised
in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

The group beheves that the estimates and judgements in relation to goodwill have the most significant impact on the annual results
under IFRS as set out below.

Goodwill

The group records all assets and labilities acquired in business combinations, including goodwill, &t fair value. Goodwill is not amortised
butis subject, at a minimum, to annual tests for impairment The initial goodwil recarded and subsequent impairment review require
management to make subjective judgements concerning the value in use of cash-generating units. This requires an estimate of the
future cash flows expected ta arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate to calculate present value. Details

of the assumptions made are provided in note 10.

(r) Other sources of estimation uncertainty

Intangible assets in a business combination

On the acquisition of a business the identifiable intangible assets may include brands, customer relationships, customer contracts, order
backlogs and websites, The fair value of these assets is determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by the
asset where no active market for the assets exists. The use of different assumptions for the expectations of future cash flows and the
discount rate would change the valuation of the intangible assets, and the estimate of expected contingent consideration payable affects
the resulting gain on acguisition recognised Detalls in relation 1o current year acquisitions are in note 20.
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2. Accounting policies continued
{(s) Recently issued accounting pronouncements

International Financial Reporting Standards
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet
effective and have not been applied in these finangial statements:

Effective date

Internatizngl Financ.al Reporting Standards {'IFR557) {year enc commenc.ng on or after}
Defimtion of a business (Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’) 1 January 2020
Amendmentto IAS 1 and 1AS 8 - Definition of ratenal 1 January 2020

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
IFRS 16 Leases' replaces IAS 17 'Leases’ and its related interpretations IFRS 16 establishes new principles for the recogrition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and is effective for the group from 1 May 2019.

Prior to this date, all of the group's leases where the group is a lessee were operating leases. The group recognised a charge in the income
statement based on straight-line recognition of the lease payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incentives received.

IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise a lease liability in respect of the obligation to make lease payments and a night-of-use asset in respect
of the lessee’s right to the exclusive use and control of the asset In the income statement, the operating lease charge as recognised under
the current rules will be replaced with a straight-ine depreciation charge on the right-of-use asset and an interest cost on the lease liability.
Under IFRS 16, the lease payments will be charged directly against the ease liability

The group intends to take advantage of the exemptions available under IFRS 16 not to apply the recognition and requirements of IFRS 16
to leases with a term of 12 months or less, or leases for which the underlying asset value is low. The recognition of these exempted leases will
therefore continue unchanged - a charge will be recogrused in the income statement based on straight-ine recagnition of the lease
payments nayable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incentives received.

The group has assessed the impact of the application of this standard, and expects to recognise lease liabilities of between £9 million and
£10 million and recognise right-of-use assets of between £8 million and £9 million.

The group expects there to be minimal impact on statutory and adjusted profit before tax as a result of adopting this new standard.

The group’s activities as a lessor are not material and hence the group does not expect any significant impact on the financial statements
with respect to sub-leasing activities.

(t) Adoption of new accounting standards

The following standards became effective in the financial year commencing 1 May 2018 and have been applied using the retrospective
apphcation method, giving an opening adjustment to retained earmngs rather than a restatement of prior penods. The comparative
information I1s not restated, and is therefore presented in line with the accounting standard applicable in the comparative year.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 introduces a new model for revenue recognition, which is based upon the transfer of contrel rather than the transfer of risks
and rewards under 1AS 18 'Revenue’. On the majority of the group’s engagement types the point at which revenue is recognised has not
changed, as the point of transfer of contrel under IFRS 15 (which determines revenue recognition) is the same as the point of transfer
of risks and rewards {which determines revenue recogniticn under IAS 18).

However, an two of the group's engagement types, the adoption of IFRS 15 has resulted in a change in revenue recognition as either:

s [FRS 15 reqguires the group to have enforceable rights to payment to meet recognition criteria for revenue having satsfied
a performance obligation. On a number of contracts the group may not have enforceable rights to payment at the early stage
of the contract and revenue will not be recognised until these rights are in place; or

+ |FRS 15 requires certain contracts to be combined, where they are entered into at or near the same time, with the same customer
and negotiated with a single commercial cbjecuve or a single performance obligation.

The accounting pohcy for revenue recognition under IFRS 15 is provided in note 2(j). This replaces the previous accounting policy
{applied in the comparative year)y under I1AS 18 of:

Revenue represents amounts recoverable from clients for professional services provided during the year, excluding value added tax.
The group recognisas revenue when the amount can be relably measured and it 1s probable economic benefits will flow.
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2. Accounting policies continued
(t) Adoption of new accounting standards continued

[FRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ continued
Services provided to clients, which at the balance sheet date have not been billed, are recognised as unbilled revenue

Revenue recognised in this manner 1s based on an assessment of the fair value of the services provided at the balance sheet date
reflecting the stage of completion (determined by costs incurred 1o date as a percentage of the total anticipated costs) of each assignment.
These estimates and judgements may change over time as the case completes and this will be recogrised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income i the pericd in which the revisicn becomes known, These judgements are formed over & large portfolio of
cases and are therefore unlikely to be individually material,

Unbilled revenue on individual client assignments is included as unbiiled income within trade and other receivables. Where amounts are
billed in advance of the services being provided, these are included within deferred income within trade and other payables.

For contingent fee engagements, revenue is anly recognised {over and above any agreed minimum fee} when, at the balance sheet date,
the outcome to the transaction can e estimated reliably,

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities The introduction of IFRS 9 impacts the group’s accounting policy for trade recevables, where we have
moved to an expected loss method of providing for future impairment. This replaces the previous accounting policy (applied in the
comparative year) to (nitially recognise trade recewables at farr value, and then subsequently state at amortised cost less allowances

for estimated irrecoverable amcunts. There was no reclassification adjustment upon transition to IFRS 9.

Opening adjustment to retained earnings
The adoption of these standards at 1 May 2018 reduced trade and other receivables by £1.8 millicn and increased deferred tax assets by
£0.4 miilion, giving a reduction in net assets of £1.4 million.

The tables below show the impact of adopting these new accounting policies in the year

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Balances
without
adoption
of new
As reporten IFRS 15 IFRS 9 standards Year ended
20 Apnl 2018 acjustment adjustment 30 April 2019 30 ApiE 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £300
Revenue 60,058 15 — 60,073 52,441
Direct costs (34,276} — — (34,276) (30,141
Gross profit 25,782 15 — 25,797 22,300
Other operating income 363 — — 393 400
Administrative expenses (22,163 — 31 {22,132) {19.922)
Operating profit before amortisation
and transaction costs 7,553 15 31 7,599 5,059
Transaction costs (1,180 — — (1,180} (1,364}
Amortisation (2,361} — — {2,361) (1,917}
Operating profit 4,012 15 31 4,058 2,778
Finance costs {486) — — (486) (482}
Profit before tax 3,526 15 31 3,572 2,296
Tax (1.092) {3) (6} (1,101} 872}
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,434 12 25 2,471 1,424
Earnings per share
Basic 2.2 pence 2.2 pence 13 pence
Diluted 2.1 pence 2.1 pence 1.3 pence
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{t) Adoption of new accounting standards continued

Opening adjustment to retained earnings continued

Consclidated balance sheet

Balances
without
adoption
of new
Asrenorled RS 15 IF259 standards
30 AN 2079 adjstment agjustment 30 April 2019 30 Apnl 2018
£000 £000 £300 £000 £000
Non-current assets 64,378 — — 64,378 62,332
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 32,653 1,261 381 34,305 30,829
Cash and cash equivalents 4,009 — — 4,009 3,518
36,662 1,261 391 38,314 34,347
Total assets 101,040 1,261 391 102,692 96,679
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (22,664) 182 — (22,482) {17,268)
Current tax liabilities (1,976) (3) (5} (1,985) (1,548)
Provisions (588) — — (588) (783)
{25,228) 179 (5} (25,055) {19,589)
Net current assets 11,434 1,440 385 13,259 14,748
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables — — — — {1,093)
Borrowings {10,000) — — {10,000) (11,000)
Provisions (763} — — (763) {414
Deferred tax {5,348) {(271) 67 (5,686) (5.424)
(16,111 {277) 67) {16,449) (17931
Total liabilities 41,339) (92) {(73) (41,504) {37,530}
Net assets 59,701 1169 318 61,188 59,149
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3. Revenue
Revenue recogrised in the year of £60,058,000 (2018: £52,441,000) was exclusively from contracts with customers recognised in
accordance with tFRS 15 An analysis of revenue by nature of activity and recognition method s detailled in note 4.

The contract balances recognised are:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Contract assets

Trade recevables 6,485 5,658
Unbilled income 21,310 21,719
27,795 27377

Contract liabilities
Deferred income (3,338) (1,807)

The movement in contract assets in the year comprises: £1.8 million reducuon upon adoption of IFRS 8 and IFRS 15 at 1 May 2018, £1.1 million
increase from acquisitions in the year and £1.1 millon increase due to organic growth in the year.

Revenue recognised in the year that was included in deferred income at the beginning of the year was £1.1 million The increase in deferred
income in the year relates to formal insalvency appeintments.

For the group's formal insolvency contracts, which are expected to be completed within three years, the aggregate amount of the averall
transaction price which has been allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or only partially satisfied) at 30 April 2019 is
£15.4 million.

For other contracts, the group has taken the pracucal expedients available under IFRS 15 not to disclose any amounts relating to contracts
which had an expected duration of one year or less.

4, Segmental analysis
The group's operating segments are established on the basis of the components of the group that are evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker. The group is managed as two operating segments: business recovery and financial advisory services, and property services.

In accordance with {IFRS 15, the analysis of revenue by basis of recognition and by service line is presented for 2019 following adopticn of
the new standard on 1 May 2018.
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4. Segmental analysig continued
Segmental information about these businesses Is presented below.

Business
recovery and
financial
advisory Property
services services Consolidated
2019 2019 2019
Zont nuing aperations £000 £'000 £000
Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professianal services 43,313 16,903 60,216
Inter-segment revenue — (158) (158)
Revenue from extaernal customers 43,313 16,745 60,058
Over time 40,459 2,098 42 557
At a pointin time 2,854 14,647 17,501
Revenue from external customers by basis of recogrition 43,313 16,745 60,058
Insolvency and advisory services 40,459 —_ 40,459
Corporate finance 2,854 — 2,854
Commercizgl property management — 2,098 2,098
Property consultancy services - 8,921 8,921
Commercial property and other business asset disposals — 5,726 5,726
Revenue from external customers by service line 43,313 16,745 60,058
Segmental result 8,658 3,765 12,423
Shared and central costs (4,870)
Operating profit before amoertisation and transaction costs 7,553
Transaction costs {1,180)
Amortisation of intangible assats arising on acquisitions (2,361)
Operating profit 4,012
Finance costs (486)
Profit before tax 3,526
Tax (1,092)
Profit for the financial year 2,434
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets £3,440 13,591 97,031
Unallocated corporate assets 4,009
Consolidated total assets 101,040
Liabilities
Segment liabilities (16,035) (7,980) {24,015)
Unallocated corporate tiabilities {17,324)
Consolidated total liabilivies (41,339)
Net assets 59,701

Unallocated amounts include current and deferred tax liabilities, cash and financial liabilities and other central assets and liabilities.
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4. segmental analysig continued

Business
recovery and
financial
advisory Property
services services Consolidated
2019 2019 2019
£000 £'000 £000
Other information
Non-current assets additions from acquisitions 432 2,274 2,706
Capitat and software additions 941 59 1,000
Depreciation and software amortisation 618 142 760
Business
recovery and
finanzial
adv sery Property
services SErvICes Consolidated
2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £'000
Revenue
Total revenue from rendening of professional services 38,273 14,288 52,561
Inter-segment revenue — {120y (120}
External revenue 38,273 14,168 52,41
Segmental result 7,563 3,132 10,695
Shared and central costs (4,636)
Operating profit before amortisation and transaction costs 6,059
Transaction costs (1.364)
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acguisitions (1,917}
Operating profit 2778
Finance costs (482}
Profit before tax 2,296
Tax (872)
Profit for the financial year 1,424
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 85,928 7,233 93,167
Unallocated corporate assets 3,518
Consolidated total assets 96,679
Liabilities
Segment liabilities (15,085) (4,473} (13,558}
Unallocated corporate labilities (17.972)
Consolidated totat liabilities (37530
Net assets 59,14G
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Business
racoveny, and
fnanc al
advisary “roperty
services services Corsalbdatea
207 2018 2018
000 £000 £000
Other information
Non-current assets additons from acquisitions 2,276 444 2,720
Capital and software additons 412 59 471
Depreciatien and software amortisation 545 125 670
Geographical segments
The group's principal operations and markets are located in the UK.
5. Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging {crediting}.
2019 2018
£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 563 488
Amortisation of intangibte assets 2,558 2.099
Staff costs (note 6) 34,673 31,121
Operating lease rentals payable 2,754 2,687
Impairment of receivable balances (note 12) 276 466
Reversal of impairment losses recognised gn trade receivables (note 12) (195) (247)
During the year, the group obtained the following services from the group's auditor, at the costs detaled below:
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 30 30
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services to the group
- the audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 82 74
Total audit fees 112 104
- other advisory services 34 8
Total non-audit fees 34 8
During the year, the group incurred transaction costs as detailed below:
2019 018
£000 £000
Deemed remuneration 2,806 1,678
ACquisition costs 154 117
Gain on acquisition (note 20) (2,909) (1,189}
Charge arising under Beghies Traynor London {LLP) put and call option {note 26} 1,129 758
Total transaction costs 1,180 1,364

These transaction costs are all included within admimistrative expenses.
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6. Staff costs
The average monthly number of persons (including executive direcrors) working within the group was:

2019 20°8
number number
Partners and consultants 55 a7
Fee earning staff 397 360
Support staff 155 149
607 556
2019 2018
£000 £:000
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Wages, salaries and partners’ profit share 30,917 27,493
Social security costs 2,257 2130
Pension costs (note 25} 1,400 1,203
Share-based payments 99 295
34,673 31121
Directors’ remuneration
2019 2018
£000 £'000
Short-term benefits 1,995 1,667
Share-based payments 2 2
1,997 1,669
Number Number
The average number of directors who:
Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 2
No directors participated in the group's defined contribution pension scheme during either year.
7. Tax
2019 2018
£000 £000
Current tax charge 1,303 1,224
Adjustment in respect of prior year - (4
Total current tax charge 1,303 1,220
Deferred tax credit (note 16) 211) (244)
Adjustment in respect of prior year — (104)
Total deferred tax credit {211) (348)
Total income tax charge 1,092 872

Corporation tax is calcutated at 19% (20718, 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
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7. Tax continued
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive incarme as follows:

2018 20°8
£000 £000
Profit before tax 3,526 2,296
Notignal tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2018: 19%) 670 436
Adjustments in respect of current Income tax of prior years — {108)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 422 544
Total tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1,092 872
8. Dividends
2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2018 of 0.7 pence {2017 0.6 pence) per share 7 640
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2018 of 1.7 pence {2017: 1.6 pence) per share 1,878 1,716
2,649 2,356
Amounts proposed as distributions to equity holders
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019 of 0 8 pence (2018: 0.7 pence) per share 914 771
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019 of 1.8 pence (2018 1.7 pence) per share 2,058 1,872
2,972 2,643

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting in September 2019, The intenim dividend
for 2019 was not paid untl 8 May 2019 and, accerdingly, has not been included as a liabylity in these financial statements nor as a distribution
to equity shareholders.

9. Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

209 2018
£000 £C00
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders 2,434 1,424
2019 2018
number number
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 112,547,759 108,998,501
Effect of:
Share options 404,262 1,264,656
Contingent shares as consideration for capital transactions 3,476,190 3,196,612
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 116,428,211 113,460,169
2019 2018
pence pence
Basic earnings per share 2.2 13
Diluted earnings per share 21 1.3
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9, Earnings per share continued
The calculation of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share s based on the following data’

2019 2078
£000 2000
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders 2,434 1,424
Amortisation of intangible assets ansing on acquisitions 2,361 1,917
Transacton costs 1,180 1,364
Tax effect of above items (449) (364)
Adjusted earnings 5,526 4,341
2019 2078
pence pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 4.9 4.0
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 4.7 38
10. Intangible assets
Intangible
assels
Arising on
Goodwill Software acguisitions Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
A1 May 2017 50,129 1,72¢ 19,203 71,061
AriSINg ON acquIsitions 84 — 2,528 2,611
Additions — 77 — 77
AL 30 April 2018 50,213 1,806 21,731 73,750
Arising on acquisitions — — 2,673 2,673
Additions — 216 — 216
At 30 April 2019 50,213 2,022 24,404 76,639
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 May 2017 — 1,185 11,405 12,590
Amortisation during the year — 182 1.917 2,099
At 30 April 2018 — 1,367 13,322 14,689
Amortisation during the year - 197 2,361 2,558
At 30 April 2019 —_ 1,564 15,683 17,247
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2019 50,213 458 8,721 59,392
At 30 April 2018 50,213 439 8,409 53,067
AL 30 April 2017 50,129 544 7798 58,471
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10. Intangible assets continued

The carrying value of intangible assets ansing on acquisitions comprises brands of £2,852,000 (2018 £2,680,000), customer relationships
of £4,456,000 (2018 £3,832,000), order books of £1,197,000 (2018 £1,650,000} and websites of £216,000 (2018 £247,000). The remaining
useful economic lives of intangible assets arising on acquisition are between one and nine years.

Goodwill acquired in a business combinaten is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs'} that are expected to benefit
from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated wholly to the insolvency CGU

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the CGU 15 based on avalue in use calculation using cash flow projections over a 20 year period, including
the latest one year forecast approved by the board. A 20 year period has been used as the directors believe this is an appropriate period
to reflect insclvency numbers over an economic cycle.

The one year forecast is prepared considering local partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers of new engagements
and the pipeline of cpportunities. The remaining years are based on anticipated insolvency numbers over an ecanomic cycle, together
with historical financial performance.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculation
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding:

s pre-tax discount rate;
* ravenue; and

s operating profit margins.

Pre-tax discount rate

The group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital has been used to calculate a group pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2018: 10%),
which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money for the period under review and the risks specific to the group.
As the insclvency CGU comprises the majority of the group’s activities this has been used as the discount rate for the purpose of the
value in use calculation.

Revenue

Revenue assumptions in the one year forecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers
of new engagements and the pipeline of cpportunities. Future year revenue levels are based on anticipated insclvency numbers over
an economic cycle. This anticipates an increase ininsolvency appointments during recession followed by subseguent decreases,

The average number of insclvency appointments over the economic cycle is in line with historical levels

Operating profit margins

Operating prefit margins in the one year forecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on the number of current
engagements and cost base. Margins over the extrapolation period are forecast based on past experiences and expectations
of future market developments.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
With regard to the assessment of value in use for the insolvency CGU, the directors believe that reasonably possible changes
in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.
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11. Property, plant and equipment

ceasehole Ofice Motor
Irprovements equinment Computers vehicles Total
£000 £900 £000 £'0006 £7300
Cost
At 1 May 2017 4,288 1,424 3,144 — 8,856
Arising on acquisitions 26 X 19 52 108
Additions & 72 316 — 394
Disposals {219) {1) e — {220)
At 30 April 2018 4,101 1,506 3,479 52 9,138
Arising on acquisitions — 22 4 — 33
Additions 355 37 392 — 784
At 30 April 2019 4,456 1,572 3,875 52 9,955
Depreciation and impairment
AL 1 May 2017 3,428 1,256 2,674 — 7,358
Charge for the year 188 21 215 4 488
Disposals (219) (1} — — (2209
AL 30 April 2018 3,397 1,336 2,389 4 7626
Charge for the year 197 71 278 17 563
At 30 April 2019 3,594 1,407 3,167 21 8,189
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2019 862 165 708 31 1,766
AL 30 April 2018 704 170 590 48 1,512
AU30 April 2017 860 168 470 — 1,498
12. Trade and other receivables
2019 2018
£000 £000

Non-current
Deemed remuneration 3,220 1,759
Current
Trade recevables 7,823 6,740
Less: jmpairment provision {1,338) (1,082)
Trade receivables - net 6,485 5,658
Unbilled income 21,310 21,719
Other debtors and prepayments 2,379 2,153
Deemed remuneration 2,479 1,299

32,653 30.829

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to thewr fair value

Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. Refer to note 17 for disclosures on credit risk.
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The impairment provision comprises a specific loss allowance provision of £327,000 and an expected credit loss provision of £411,000.
The expected loss provision for trade receivables is calculated on the gross carrying amount of trade receivables less any speaific loss

allowance, and is detailed as follows

Days pas: due

<230 days <E0 03y 5 <99 cays < 80days =180 days Tatal
U Apnl 20132 £0073 £000 £C00 £000 £000 £000
Expectedlossrate 1% 2% 4% 10% 31% 6%
Gross carrying amount 3,841 1,109 444 686 816 6,896
Expected creditjoss provision 39 26 19 72 255 an

The impairment provision previously recognised at 30 April 2018 under 1AS 39 of £1,082,000 was increased by £359,000 to £1,441,000,
beng the expected creditloss provision calculated in accordance with IFRS S.

Days past due

<30 days <Hl) 2ays =90 days <180 days ~1R0 days Total
1 May 2018 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expected loss rate 1% 3% 16% 10% 34% 6%
Gross carrying amount 3,277 947 268 462 704 5658
Expected creditjoss provision 26 29 16 46 242 359

Following adoption on 1 May 2018 impairment provisicn under IAS 39 was increased by £359,000 to reflect adoption of IFRS 9, an
increase from the £1,082,000 recogmised at 1 May 2018 under |AS 39

Movement in the impairment provision

2019 2018

£000 £000

Balance at beginning of the year 1,082 1,020
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (see note 2(t)) 359 —
1,441 1,020

AMOUNTS arising on acquisition 20 —
Amounts written off duning the year {204) (157}
Amounts recovered dunng the year (195) (247}
Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss 276 466
Balance at end of the year 1,338 1,082

In accordance with the transitional provision under [FRS S,
relate to the FY18 comparatives:

the comparative figures have not been restated. The following disclosures

Neither past Pas: due but not mpaired
due no-
mpaired up
Total to 30 days 1-3 manths >4 rmontns
ED0D £300 £1000 £100
2018 5,658 4,348 618 692

Annual repert and accounts 2019 Begbies Traynor Group plc 49



Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

13. Trade and other payables

2019 2018
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 953 1.414
Accruals 7125 6,902
Other taxes and social securtty 3,308 2,319
Deferred income 3,338 1,807
Other creditors 4,830 4,249
Deemed remuneration liabilities 3,110 577
22,664 17,268
Non-current
Deemed remuneration liabilities — 1,093

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms agreed with suppliers
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to therr fair value

In addition to the deemed remuneration liabilities recognised above of £3.1 millien, there are further anticipated obligations based on
current forecasts of £3.3 million as a result of acquisitions where the service obligations of the selling sharehalders have not yet been performed.

14. Borrowings

2019 2018
£7000 £000
Non-current
Unsecured loans at amortised cost 10,000 11,000

The group's principal banking facilities at 30 April 2019 comprise an unsecured, revolving credit facility (RCF) of £25 millicn and an
uncommitted acquisition facility of £5 million which were entered into on 1 November 2016, The principal features of these borrowings
are summarised as follows'

* RCFof £25 million provided by HSBC, of which £10 million was drawn at 30 April 2019 (2018, £11 milion}. The effective interest rate
was 3.5%; together with

+ uncommitted acquisition facility of £5 million provided by HSBC, which was undrawn at 30 April 2019 {2018 undrawn).
The group's banking facilities mature on 31 August 2023,

All borrowings and cash balances are denominated in sterling. The directors consider that the fair values of the group’s financial
Instruments approximate to their book value.
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Cispesal P-operty exi
proASIoNS QrovIsions
2900 £000 £600
At 1 May 2018 267 930 1197
Charged — 577 577
Arising on acquisiton — 56 50
Utilised {7) {466} {473)
At 30 April 2019 260 1,091 1,351
Current hzbilites 30 49§ 538
Nen-current liabilities 170 593 763
At 30 April 2019 260 1,001 1,351

Disposal provisions mclude liabilities arising from warranty and onerous contract obligations relating te discontinued businesses.

Froperty exit provisions relate to anticipated dilapidation costs on property leases, together with onerous lease commitments where
the space is vacant, which is calculated as the difference between future expected costs of onerous leasehold property net of any

estimated income.

The nan-current elements of the provisions are all expected to be utilised in the periods up to 30 April 2021,

16. Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax (liabilines) assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior year'

Tax Short-term
deductible fiming
goodwill Intangibles differences Toral
F'00G £300 £000 £000
At 1 May 2017 (4,181) (1,232} 4 (5.409)
{Charge) credit to income (82) 192 134 244
Arising on acguisitions — {469) 106 (363)
Income statement affect of change in tax rate — — 104 104
At 30 April 2018 {4,263) {1.509) 348 (5,424)
{Charge) credit to iIncome (273 449 (2711 21
Arising on acguisitions — 475) ? (473)
Arising from accounting policy change — — 338 338
At 30 April 2019 (4,290 (1,535} 477 (5.348)
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset}
for financial reporting purposes:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Deferred tax liabilities (5,899) {5,844)
Deferred tax assets 551 420
(5,348) (5,424}
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17. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The group's principal financial instruments comprise cash balances and bank loans. The main purpose of these financial instruments
Is to raise finance for the group’s operations The group alse has various other financial instruments, such as trade recevables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations

Itis, and has been throughout the period under review, the group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken

The main risks arising from the group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and hquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below

Interest rate risk

The group's external borrowings at the balance sheet date comprise loan facilives, All principal borrowings are on floating interest
rates. The group does not seek to fix interest rates on these borrowings as the board currently considers the exposure to interest
rate risk acceptable.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit for the year ended
30 Aprit 2019 and net assets at that date would decrease by £37.000 (2018: £41,000). This 1s attributable to the group's exposure
to movements in interest rate on its variable rate borrowings.

Credit risk
The nature of the group’s debtor balances, the ume taken for payment by clients and the associated credit risk are dependent on the
type of engagement.

Cn formal insolvency appointments (which form the majority of the group's activities), invcices are generally raised having achieved
approval from creditors to draw fees. This is typicafly settled on a timely basis from case funds. The credit risk on these engagements
is therefore considered to be extremely low,

On other engagements, the timescale to receive payment from the date of invoice 1s typically longer as the group’s standard 30 day
payment terms {referred to in note 12} are not practically enforceable in all situations. The board does not believe that this is an indication
of increased credit risk on these engagements.

Receivable balances are monitgred on an ongoing basis with the result that the group’s exposure 1o bad debts is not significant,
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in note 12. The group does not believe it is exposed te any material
concentrations of credit risk.

Unbiiled revenue is recognised by the group only when ali conditions for revenue recogrition have been met in line with the group's
accounting policy in note 2(}).

Liquidity risk .

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The group's
ability to generate cash from formal insolvency appointments is usually reliant on asset realisations. A deterioration in realisations in the
short term could reduce the group's operating cash generation and increase its fiancing requirements. The group monitors its risks to
ashortage of funds through regular cash management and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroom within its banking facilities.

The group's objective is to maintain a halance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of its committed bank facitiues,
and giving consideration to other available sources of finance such as bank overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts.

There 1s no material risk asscaated with foreign currency transacuons or overseas subsidiaries.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the group’s financial liabilities at 30 April based on contractual payments:

At 30 April 2019 AL 30 April 2618

Within Between After Within Betweer After
1 year 2.5 years S5years Total 1 year 2-5 years 5 years Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 F000 £000 £000 £000
Bank borrowings 275 10,905 — 11,180 298 11,653 e 11,951
Trade payables 953 — — 953 1,414 — — 1,414
Deemed remuneration liabilities 3,110 — — 3,110 577 1,093 — 1,670
4,338 10,905 — 15,243 2,289 12,746 — 15,035
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17. Financial instruments continued

Capital management

The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The group manages
1ts capital structure and makes adjustments toitin light of changes in economic cenditions and business reguirements To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the group may raise additional or pay down debt finance, adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital 1o shareholders or 1ssue new shares.

The tatle below presents quantitative data for the components the group manages as capital

2019 2018
£000 £000
Sharehalders’ funds 59,701 59,149
Bank borrowings 10,000 11,000
At 30 April 69,701 70,149
Categories of financial instruments
The table below shows the classification of the group’s financial instruments.
2019 2018
£000 £000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 6,485 5,658
Cash at bank 4,009 3,518
10,494 9,176
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables (953) (1,414
Bank borrowings (10,000) {11,000}
(10,953) {12,414}
18. Share capital
2019 2018 2019 2018
thousand thousand £000 EG00
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
At 1 May 110,127 106,704 5,508 5336
Staff SIP scheme 13 60 1 3
Issue of shares for share-based payments 834 692 43 35
Sharesissued as consideration for acquisitions 1,485 2,019 74 101
Shares issued as deferred consideration 1.892 652 93 33
AL 30 April 114,351 110,127 5,719 5,508
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Deferred shares of 1 pence
AT 1 May — 30,378 — 304
Cancellation of shares - (30.378) - (304)
AL 30 April —_ — — -
Issued share capital 114,351 110127 5,719 5,508

QOrdinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right to ene vote at general meetings of the company.

Deferred shares have no nights to fixed income, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company. The shares are only
transferable with the consent of the company
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19. Share-based payments
Share option scheme
The group operates a share option scheme which 1s settled in ordinary shares.

Additional share opuions were 1ssued during the year. The exercise of the grants is subject to the following: 50% have no performance
conditions; 25% require an overall increase in adjusted earnings per share over a three year period of RPI plus 2 5%, and 25% require
average total shareholder return to exceed that of a comparator group over a three year period

Directers’ remuneration information is provided on pages 19 and 20.

Employee Shareholder Status (ESS) shares
Certain employees held Employee Shareholder Status shares, which where converted into ordinary shares in Begbies Traynor Group plc
during the year.

SavetAs-You-Barn Scheme

Employees are able to share in the group's success through membership of our Sharesave scheme. Sharesave 1s 8 HMRCG-approved
save-as-you-earn share option scheme, which allows participants to purchase shares out of the proceeds of a linked savings cantract
atjpjprice set at the time of the option grant. Participants may elect to save up to £250 per month and options may normally be
exercisedjn the six months following the maturity of the linked three year savings contract.

Share-based payments were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Share opuion Share option share option Share option SAYE

scheme schemne ESS scheme scheme scheme

Grant date 75 Octaber 2013 25 July 2014 1/ Octaber 2016 31 October 2017 25 Apnl 2018 20 Novemper 2018
Share price at grant date (pence) 38 52 48 63 69 74
Exercise price (pence) 37 51 — 63 68 59
Vesting penod {years) 3 3 1-3 3 3 3
Time to expiry (years) 10 10 1-3 10 10 4
Expected volatility (%) 23 25 8 17 17 17
Risk free rate (%) a8 08 G5 0.5 0.5 05
Expected dividend yield {%) 6.2 6.2 4.4 36 35 34
Fair value per option (pence) 33 9.8 48 4.4 54 79

The expacted volatility has been determined based on historical volatility of the group's share price cver the last three years The risk free rate
is based on UK treasury issued bonds of a term consistent with the option life. The fair value is spread over the vesting period of the options.

Detalls of movements in shares under opuon during the year are as follows:

2019 2018

Number Weighted Number weighted

of share average of share average

cptions  exercise price options CRErISE Rrice

thousand £ thousand £

Outstanding at 1 May 5137 0.43 4,795 0.26
Granted during the period 1,134 0.59 2,250 0.63
Forfeited during the period (122) - - —
Exercised during the period (965) 0.10 (1,608) 017
Expired duning the penod —_ — (300) 0.62
Outstanding at 30 April 5,184 0.54 5137 0.43
Exercisable at 30 April 1,800 .40 G475 0.37

The group recognised an expense of £9%,000 (2018: £295,000) in relation to equity-settled share-based payments,
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exercised in the year was 58 pence.

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at 30 April 2019 1s between nil and 68 pence. The weighted average remaining
contractual life for share opticns outstanding 1s 5.5 years.
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20. Acquisitions

Croft Transport Planning

On 31 January 2018 the group acquired the entire issued share capital of MMXI Limited trading as Croft Transport Planning & Design
{('Croft’), a business providing highways, transport and traffic advice

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assurmed are set out below,

Fail value

Boo«<value adjustrrents Far salue

£009 £000 £400

Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 1,029 1.029
Property, plant and equipment 4 — 4
Trade and other receivables 650 (10) 640
Cash and cash equivalents 1,592 — 1,592
Trade and other payables (236) (50) (286)
Corporation tax {240) — (240)
Deferred tax (m (181 (182)
Total identifiable assets 1769 788 2,657
Satisfied by:
Cash 1125
Equity instruments (640,150 ordinary shares in Beghies Traynor Group plc) 375
initial consideration 1,500
Fair value of contingent consideration at acquisition 1172
Payment re cash at completion subject to completion accounts adjustments 1,000
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 181
Less: amounts treated as deemed remuneration {2,672)
Total consideration 1181
Gain on acquisition {1,376}
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2125
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired (1.592)

5332

Fair value adjustments of £1,029,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recerded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 10,

Under the terms of the acquisition, contingent consideration {payable in cash} of up to £2,500,000 will become payable subject to the
achievernent of financial targets in the five year period directly following completion. The initial and contingent consideration payable
for this acquisition requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the selling shareholders over a five year period.
These amounts are treated as deemed remuneration and charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the obligation.

Acquisition costs of £46,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost.

The acquisition cantributed £446,000 of revenue and £98,000 to the group's adjusted profit before tax for the period between the date
of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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20. Acquisitions continued

Barker Storey Matthews

On 5 April 2019 the group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of BSMH Limited, which trades as Barker Storey Matthews (BSM'),
anindependent firm of chartered surveyors

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilites assumed are set out below

Fa rvalue
Book value agustments Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 1,214 1,214
Property, plant and eguipment 77 (50) 27
Trade and other recetvables 435 (10) 425
Cash and cash equivalents 1,401 — 1,401
Trade and other payables (348; (75) {423)
Pravisions (50} — {50}
Corporation tax {209} — (209}
Deferred tax [4]8) (202) (212}
Total identifiable assets 1,296 877 2173
Satisfied by:
Cash 1,067
Equity instruments (844,290 ordinary shares in Begbies Traynor Group plc) 533
Initial consideration 1,600
Fair value of contingent consideration at acquisition 926
Payment re cash at completion subject to completion accounts adjustments 778
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 228
Less, amounts treated as deemed remuneration {2,528)
Total considerartion 1,006
Gain on acquisition 1167
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 1,845
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired {1,407}
444

Fair value adjustments of £1,214,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 10

Under the terms of the acquisition, contingent consideration of up to £1,400,000 will become payable subject to the achievement of financial
targets in the five year period directly following completion. The initial and contingent consideration payable for this acquisition requires
post-acquisition service obhgations to be performed by the selling shareholders over a five year period. These amounts are treated as
deemed remuneration and charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the abligation.

Acquisition costs of £54,000 have been charged 1o the statement of comprehensive income as a transacton ¢ost,

The acquisition cantributed £375,000 of revenue and £15,000 to the group's adjusted profit before tax for the period between the date
of acquisition and the balance sheet date

56 Beghies Traynor Group ple Annual repert and accounts 2019



Strategic report / Corporate governance / Financial statements

20. Acquisitions continued

KRE {(North East)

On 13 February 2019 the group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of KRE (North East) Lirmited, an insalvency pracuce based
in Newcastle

The amounts recogrised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed are set out below

Falr value
ook value adjustrmerts Far value
£900 £000 £500
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 245 345
Property, plant and equipment 5 (5) —
Trade and cther receivables 65 223 288
Cash and cash equivalents 74 — 74
Trade and other payables (22} {194y (216)
Corporation tax (44} — 44
Deferred tax — (62) (62)
Total identifiable assets 78 307 385
Satisfied by:
initial consideratien {paid in cash) 450
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 33
Fair value of contingent consideration at acquisition 150
Less: amounts treated as deemed remuneration {600)
Total consideration 32
Gain on acquisition 352

Fair value adjustments of £345,000 relaung to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 10.

Under the terms of the acquisition, contingent consideration of up to £150,000 wilil become payable subject to the achievement of financial
targets in the ane year penod directly following completion. The imitial and contingent consideration payable for this acquisition reguires
post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the selling shareholder over a three year penod. These amounts are treated as
deemed remuneration and charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the abligation.

Acquisition costs of £24 000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost.

The acquisition contributed £110,000 of revenue and £73,000 to the group’s adjusted profit before tax for the period between the date
of acguisition and the balance sheet date.
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20. Acquisitions continued
Dunion & Co
On 1 March 2019 the group acquired the entire issued share capital of Dunion & Co Limited, an insolvency pracuice based in Stoke-on-Trent.

The amounts recognised inrespect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out below

Fai value
Book value acjustments Fair value
£000 £000 £200

Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 85 85
Property, plant and equipment 2 — 2
Trade and other receivables 12 34 46
Cash and cash equivalents 286 — 286
Trade and other payables {7) {96) {103)
Corporation tax 5 — 5
Deferred tax — (16} (16)
Total idenufiable assets 298 7 305
Satisfied by:
jrinal consideration {paid in cash} 100
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 291
Fair value of contingent consideration at acquisition 100
Less: amounts treated as deemed remuneration (200
Total consideration 291
Gain on acquisition 14

Fair value adjustments of £85,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded Details of intangible assets
recorded can be found in note 10,

Under the terms of the acquisition, contingent consideration of up to £100,000 will become payable subject to the achieveament of
financial targets in the two year period directly following completion The initial and contingent consideration payable for this acquisition
requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the selling shareholder over a three year period. These amounts are
treated as deemed remuneration and charged to the conscolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the obligation.

Acquisition costs of £11,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost

The acquisition contributed £52.000 of revenue and £30,000 to the group's adjusted profit before tax for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisitions had been completed onthe first day of the financial year, the group revenues for the period would have been £64 7 millian
and group profit before tax would have been £4 5 million.

The amounts recognised ahove are provisional estumates. There have been no material changes to prior year estimates.
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20. Acquisitions continued
Reconciliation of cash outflows from acquisition of businesses

2019 2018

£'000 £000
{ash consideration (2,742) (1,565)
Payments re cash at completion {1,778} {1,250}
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 3,353 2,012
Net cash and cash equivalents acquired 1,575 762
Net cash outflow frem acquisition of businesses (1,167} (803)
21. Reconciliation to the cash flow statement

2019 2018

£000 £200
Profit for the year 2,434 1,424
Adjustments for
Tax 1,092 372
Finance costs 486 482
Amartisation of intangible assets 2,558 2,099
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 563 438
Deemed remuneration 2,806 1,678
Charge relating to the put and call option over Begbies Traynor (London) LLP 1,129 758
Gain on acquisition (2,909) (1.189)
Share-based payment expense 99 295
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 8,258 6,907
Increase in recevables (827) {458}
Increase in payables 1,643 2,742
Increase {decrease) in provisions 104 (126}
Cash generated by operations 9,178 9,065

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as 2 single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank
and other short-term highly hquid investments with a maturity of three months or less.

22. Reconciliation of movement in net debt

Cash and cash Non-current

equivalents 20TroWINgs Ner debt

£'000 £000 £000

AUT May 2018 3,518 {11,000} (7.482)
Cash flows (84) — (84)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (1.600) 1.000 —
Net cash and cash equivalents acguired (note 20} 1,575 — 1,575
At 30 April 2019 4,009 {10,000} (5,991)
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23. Contingent liabilities
The group had no material contingent habilities at 30 Aprif 2019 or 30 Aprit 2018.

24, Operating lease arrangements
The group as lessee

2019 2018
£000 £000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 2,754 2,687

At the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows

2019 2018

£000 £000

Within one year 2,102 2,105
inthe second to fifth years inclusive 4,720 3,385
After five years 36 105
6,858 5,595

Operating lease payments principally represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, which have an average
duration of seven years, together with operating leases for motor vehicles

The group as lessor
Rental income earned during the year was £133,000 {2018: £133,000). At the balance sheet date, the group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments.

20189 2018

£000 £000

Within one year ) 40 161
in the second to fifth years inclusive — 40
40 201

Operating lease income represants rental income receivable by the group, which is committed for the next year.

25. Pensions
The group operates defined contribution pension schemes for all qualifying employees.

The total cost charged to income of £1,400,000 (2018; £1,203,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group.
As at 30 April 2019, centributions of £149,000 (2018: £113,000) in respect of the current year, which were not yet due for payment,
hadjotpeen paid over to the schemes,
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26. Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
notfisciosed in this note,

Trading transactions
During the year the following transactions, all of which were on arm's length terms and in the ordinary course of business, occurred
inwhich directors have an interest:

various commercial properties used by members of the group during the year are owned or part owned by Ric Traynor or his personal
pension fund. Rent and service charges paid on those properties by entities within the group in the year totalled £13,458 (2018: £155,500).
AL 30 April 2018 £nil (2018 £nif) was payable inrespect of these transactions

COne commercial property used by members of the group during the year 1s part owned by Mark Fry. Rent and service charges paid
on this property by entities within the group in the year totalled £95,000 (2018 £85,000). At 3¢ Aprif 2019 £nil {2018: £nil) was payable
in respect of this transaction. Mark Fry also part owns a company which provides archiving facilities to entities within the group. £24,000
(2018: £24,000) was paid by entities within the group for this service during the year At 30 April 2019 £6,000 (2018: £6,000) was payable
in respect of this service.

Ric Traynor purchased the controlling interast in Red Flag Alert LLP (Red Flag') from the group on 10 Apnl 2012, with the group retaining

a minority Interest in the partnership. The group continues to provide a number of central support services to Red Flag for which £96,000
was payable by Red Flag during the year (2018: £96,000). The group has negotiated an agreement to retain full access to the database
and joint marketing rights for the publication of Red Flag Alertjuarterly statistics and was charged a fee of £150,000 for the year
(2018: £150,000). At 30 April 2019 £141,000 (2018: £201,000) was owed by Red Flag Alert LLP

Begbies Traynor (Lendon} LLP option

There 1s a put and call option in place for the group to acquire Mark Fry's interest in Begbies Traynor {Lendon) LLP during a three month
period after 30 September 2019, for £4 million (determined as an agreed multiple of average profit over the three year period ended
30 April 20719). At the group’s discretion the payment can be made through a combination of cash and ordinary shares, subject to the_
fondition that at least £2 million of the total consideration must be cash.

The anticipated hability to the group under this option is accounted for In accordance with the group's policy for business combinations
(note 2¢} and charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost as disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements The charge in the current financial year was £1.1 million (2018: £0.8 miliion) with a liability of £2.2 million recognised at

30 April 2019 within current deemed remuneration liabiities.

Key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, 1s set out in the directors’' remuneration report
on page 20.

27. Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within owners’ equity.
Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value

Merger reserve Formation of the group in 2004, and premium for shares issued on acquisitions in accordance with
Companies Act requirements,

Capital redemption reserve  Repurchase of own share capital.
Translation reserve Exchange differences arising on the retranslaton of reserves of foreign subsidiaries

Retained earnings Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
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2019 05

Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiaries 5 36,682 35,737
Current assets
Trade and other receivables ) 32,033 31,381
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 7 (49} (1,413)
Net current assets 31,984 29,968
Total assets less current liabilities 68,666 65,705
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade and cother payables 7 (500) (500}
Net assets 68166 65,205
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 8 5,719 5,508
Share premiurn account 23,190 22,789
Merger reserve 22,189 20,248
Capital redemption reserve 304 304
Profit and loss account 16,764 16,356
Shareholders’ funds 68,166 65,205

As permitted by secuon 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account
for the year Begbies Traynor Group plc reported a profit for the financial year ended 30 April 2013 of £3,110,000 (2018: £1,782,000,.

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors and
authorised for 1ssue on & July 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 April 2019

Captai
Share Snare Merger redemolior Relaines Total
capital premiLm reserve reserve earnirgs eqaity
£000 £0060 £000 £900 £000 £C00
AT May 2017 5,640 22,335 18,507 — 17,398 63,880
Profit for the year — — — — 1,782 1,782
Dividends — — — — (2.356) (2,356)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — ) 6
Qwn shares acquired in the year (304) — — 304 (226) [226)
Shares 1ssued as consideration acquisitions 101 — 1,374 — — 1,475
Shares 1ssued as deferred consideraucn 33 — 367 — — 400
SIP shares issued 3 34 — — - 37
Other share options 35 420 — — (248) 207
AL 30 April 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 16,356 65,205
Profit for the year — — — — 3,110 3110
Dividends — — — — (2,649) {2,649}
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments e — — — 38 38
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 74 — 834 — — 308
Shares issued as deferred consideration 93 — 1,107 — — 1,200
SiP shares issued 1 7 — — — 8
QOther share gptions 43 394 — — (91} 346
At 30 April 2019 5,719 23,190 22,189 304 16,764 68,166
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Notes to the company financial statements
for the year ended 30 Aprit 2019

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the company have been prepared under the historical cost convention and In accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards,

The principal accounting policies are summarised beiow. They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.

Investments
Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The carrying value of fixed asset investments
are reviewed for impairment If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Share-based payments

The fair value of services received in exchange for the grant of options 1s recognised as an expense aver the vesting period In accordance
with FRS 102, Options are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Further details are provided in note 19 of the consolidated
financial statements,

Where shares are issued to employees of subsidiaries, this I1s treated as part of the cost of investmentin that subsidiary.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of uncertainty

Inthe process of applying the company’s accaunting policies, the company is required to make certain estimates, judgements and assumptions
that it believes are reasonable based upen the information available. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabifities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented.

On an ongoing basis, the company evaluates Its estimates using historical experierice, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable in the particular circumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which s recognised
in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

The directors de not consider there to be any critical accounting Judgements or key sources of uncertainty.

FRS 102 exemption

Begbies Traynor Group plc meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure
exemptions available to itin respect of its separate financial statements. Exemnptions have been taken in these separate company financial
statements in relation to share-based payments, presentation of a cash flow statement and remuneration of key management personnel.

The company's shareholders have been notified in writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptions and
nojobjections have been received.

The company also intends to take advantage of these exemptions in the financial statements to be 1ssued in the following year Cbjections
may be served on the company by its shareholders,

2. Statement of compliance
The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with JJnited Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, and the Companies Act 2006

The functional currency of the group is considered to be pounds sterling because this is the currency of the primary economic environment
inwhich the company operates.

3. Profit for the year
The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services s disclosed in note & to the consolidated financial statements.

4. Staff gosts
The company has five employees (2018 no employees).
2019 2018
£000 £000
Their aggregate remuneratiocn comprised.
Salaries 569 —
Social security costs 73 —
Pension costs 19 —
661 —
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£000
Cost and net book value
At 1 May 2017 31,868
Additions 3,869
AT 30 April 2018 35,737
Additions 945
At 30 April 2019 36,682

The additions in the year relate tg an increase in investment in Eddisons Commercial Holdings Limited resulting from an increase in
the contingent consideration payable compared to previous estimates, and shares issued in relation to the conversion of ESS shares in

the year, which are treated as a capital contribution

Details of subsidiary entities are set out below. These undertakings are included in the consolidated group financial statements and

are 100% contraolled. Companies are listed under their registered office.

SLbs diary undertaking

Nature of business

Country of ircorporation

340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY
Beghies Trayner Limited’

BTG Consulting Limited!

Begbies Traynor International Limited'
Beghies Traynor {Central) LLP

Begbies Traynar {London) LLP

Begbies Traynor (SY} LLP

Springboard Corporate Finance LLP (formerly BTG Advisory (CF) LLP)
BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Advisory {investigations) Limited
BTG Advisory LLP

BTG Global Advisory Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

IK {North East} Limited {formerly KRE (North East) Limited)
Dunion & Co Limited

JSDNSW Limited {(formerly Springboard Corporate Finance Limited}!
Insolvency Adwvice Limited’

Begbies Traynor Legal Services LLP

BTG Tax LLP

BTG Risk LLP

Toronto Square, Toronto Street, Leeds LS1 2H]
Eddisons Commercial (Holdingsy Limited’

Eddisons Commercial Limited

Eddisons Commercial (Property Management} Limited
Eddisons insurance Services Limited

Eddisons Holdings Limited

MMXI Limited

BSMH Lirmited

BSMSR Limited

The London Silver Vaults and Chancery Lane Safe Deposit Company Limited

TBS&V Lid
Pugh & Company Limited

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Business recovery
Business recovery
Business recovery
Corporate finance
Corporate finance
Investigation agency
Financial consulting
International network
organisation
Business recavery
Business recovery
Business recovery
Corporate finance
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Insurance brokerage
Haolding company
Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Dormant

Management company

Property consultancy
Auctioneers

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
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5. Investment in subsidiaries continued

Subsiary undertak ng Nature of Gusiness  Country of ncorporat an
(M Asser Management Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Taylors Business Surveyors and Valuers Limited Dormant England and Wales
Theaucucnpeaople.co Limited Dormant England and Wales

c/o S&P Consulting 5.1, Urb, Calypso, C.C. Valdepinos,
1y 3 A 29649 Mijas Costa, Malaga, Spain

Eddizons Spain S.L Facilities management
c/o Schaffner & Orth, Kaiserhofstrasse 10, 60313 Frankfurt am Main, Deutschland
Eddisons Germany GrmbH Faclities management

Spain

Germany

1 Interestis conuolled hy subsidiasy undertaxings, except where marked where shares are held directly by Beghies Trayner Group plc

All sharehaldings relate to ordinary shares.

The directors of the company are of the opinion that the value of the investments in subsidiaries, as underpinned by their membership

benefits in the operating entities of the group, 15 not less than the cost of those investments.

The following subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006:

Subsid.ary undertak’ng

BTG Consulting Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Advisory {Investigations) Limited

Springboard Corporate Finance LLP {farmerly BTG Advisory (CF) LLP)

6. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
£000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 32,001 31,357
Other debtors 32 24
32,033 31,381
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7. Trade and other payables

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 49 1,413
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Other creditors 500 500

The company has no financial instrumnents other than those shown as financial liabilities above, all of which are denominated in sterling.
The directors consider the fair values of the financial iInstruments approximate to their book values and that the main risk to the company
arising from financial instruments 1s interest rate risk, which is kept under review

8. Share capital

2019 208 2019 2015
thousand thousand £000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
At 1 May 110,127 106,704 5,508 5,336
Staff SIP scheme 13 60 1 3
Issue of shares for share-based payments 834 692 43 35
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 1,485 2,079 74 101
Shares issued as deferred consideration 1,892 652 93 33
At 30 April 114,351 110,127 5719 5,508
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Deferred shares of 1 pence
At 1 May - 30,378 —_ 304
Cancellation of shares - (30,378) — (304)
At 30 April - — - —
Issued share capital 114,351 110127 5,719 5,508

Crdinary shares carry ne nght to fixed iIncome and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company

A ordinary shares have no rights to fixed income, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company. The shares are only
transferable either pursuant to an offer required to be made by the City Code for the A ordinary shares or atherwise with prior written
consent of the company

Deferred shares have no rights to fixed income, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company. The shares are only
transferable with the consent of the company.

The company hasissued share options as set out in nate 19 to the consolidated financial statements
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